
Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 

Date/Time:  Tuesday, November 13, 2018 @ 7:00 p.m.   

Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 

   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 

Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Denise 

Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson,  Tom Majewski, 

Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, Timothy Riley and Nicole Wiessinger 

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 

(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 

the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 

hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  

 RDA Presentation  

 General Election Update  

 

2. Minutes and Reports: 

Rivers and Trails Task Force (9/10/2018); Parks & Rec (9/18/18); Public Safety (9/26/2018); 

Finance (10/9/2018)  

 

 

3. Public Comment Period:  

 

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. October 23, 2018 Council minutes 

B.  R-182-2018 – Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue 

Operator Licenses to various applicants.  

 

5, PUBLIC HEARING-2019 City of Stoughton Operating Budget  

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

6. O-24-2018- Repealing Section 78-913 and Repealing and Recreating Section 78-517 of 

the Stoughton Municipal Code (Planning Commission approved 7-0 on October 8, 2018) 

          SECOND READING 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

7. R-183-2018- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s)  to approve the Stoughton  

Utilities 2019 budget and five year (2019-2023) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)  (Utilities and 

CIP approved unanimously)  

 

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 

regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 

  

 

mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us


 

8. R-184-2018-Authorizing and directing the proper City Officials to adopt the 2019 City of 

Stoughton Budget (Committee of the whole recommends approval 11-0)  

 

9. R- 185-2018-  Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the City of 

Stoughton five-year (2019-2023) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). (Committee of the Whole 

recommends approval 11-0)  

 

10. R-186-2018- Setting a Special Charge for Garbage and Recycling Collection Fees 

 

11. R-187-2018-Approving revisions to the City of Stoughton Fund Balance Policy (Finance 

Committee approved 5-0 on October 23, 2018)   

 

12. R-188-2018- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve an Interagency 

Agreement and accept the Crowd Control Grant on behalf of the Stoughton Police Department 

(Public Safety Committee approved 4-0).  

 

13. O-25-2018-Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; Creating 

Sub Section (76) relating to parking restrictions on the both sides of Nygaard Street 25 

feet south of Roby Road. (Public Safety approved 3-0 on October 24, 2018)  

FIRST READING 

 

14. O-26-2018- Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; 

Creating Sub Section (75) relating to parking restrictions on the South side of Roby Road 

from Nygaard Street 185 feet East. (Public Safety approved 3-0 on October 24, 2018) 

          FIRST READING  

 

15. O-27-2018- Amending Chapter 70-176 (61) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; 

relating to parking restrictions on the Veterans Road between the intersections of U.S. 51 

and Vernon Street. (Public Safety approved 3-0 on October 24, 2018) 

          FIRST READING  

 

16. R-189-2018- Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s)  to approve a Temporary 

Class “B” /Class “B” Retailers License and Special Event License to the American Cancer 

Society  Relay for Life Holiday Home Tour Opening Gala ( Public Safety Approved 3-0  on 

October 24, 2018)  

 

17. R-190-2018- Approving designated Snowmobile Routes in City right of ways (Public Safety 

approved 3-0 on October 24, 2018)  

 

18. R-191-2018- Lifting the Council Imposed Moratorium on the Blacksmith Shop  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 

aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 

Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Tom Majewski  





Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, November 13, 2018 @ 7:00 p.m.   


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Denise 


Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson,  Tom Majewski, 


Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, Timothy Riley and Nicole Wiessinger 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 


the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 RDA Presentation  


 General Election Update  


 


2. Minutes and Reports: 


Rivers and Trails Task Force (9/10/2018); Parks & Rec (9/18/18); Public Safety (9/26/2018); 


Finance (10/9/2018)  


 


 


3. Public Comment Period:  


 


 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


A. October 23, 2018 Council minutes 


B.  R-182-2018 – Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue 


Operator Licenses to various applicants.  


 


5, PUBLIC HEARING-2019 City of Stoughton Operating Budget  


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


6. O-24-2018- Repealing Section 78-913 and Repealing and Recreating Section 78-517 of 


the Stoughton Municipal Code (Planning Commission approved 7-0 on October 8, 2018) 


          SECOND READING 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


7. R-183-2018- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s)  to approve the Stoughton  


Utilities 2019 budget and five year (2019-2023) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)  (Utilities and 


CIP approved unanimously)  


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 


8. R-184-2018-Authorizing and directing the proper City Officials to adopt the 2019 City of 


Stoughton Budget (Committee of the whole recommends approval 11-0)  


 


9. R- 185-2018-  Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the City of 


Stoughton five-year (2019-2023) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). (Committee of the Whole 


recommends approval 11-0)  


 


10. R-186-2018- Setting a Special Charge for Garbage and Recycling Collection Fees 


 


11. R-187-2018-Approving revisions to the City of Stoughton Fund Balance Policy (Finance 


Committee approved 5-0 on October 23, 2018)   


 


12. R-188-2018- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve an Interagency 


Agreement and accept the Crowd Control Grant on behalf of the Stoughton Police Department 


(Public Safety Committee approved 4-0).  


 


13. O-25-2018-Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; Creating 


Sub Section (76) relating to parking restrictions on the both sides of Nygaard Street 25 


feet south of Roby Road. (Public Safety approved 3-0 on October 24, 2018)  


FIRST READING 


 


14. O-26-2018- Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; 


Creating Sub Section (75) relating to parking restrictions on the South side of Roby Road 


from Nygaard Street 185 feet East. (Public Safety approved 3-0 on October 24, 2018) 


          FIRST READING  


 


15. O-27-2018- Amending Chapter 70-176 (61) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; 


relating to parking restrictions on the Veterans Road between the intersections of U.S. 51 


and Vernon Street. (Public Safety approved 3-0 on October 24, 2018) 


          FIRST READING  


 


16. R-189-2018- Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s)  to approve a Temporary 


Class “B” /Class “B” Retailers License and Special Event License to the American Cancer 


Society  Relay for Life Holiday Home Tour Opening Gala ( Public Safety Approved 3-0  on 


October 24, 2018)  


 


17. R-190-2018- Approving designated Snowmobile Routes in City right of ways (Public Safety 


approved 3-0 on October 24, 2018)  


 


18. R-191-2018- Lifting the Council Imposed Moratorium on the Blacksmith Shop  


 


ADJOURNMENT 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 


Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Tom Majewski  








River and Trails Task Force Minutes
Monday, September 10, 2018
Ed Overland Room


Present: Jim Wilcox, Sandra Black, Bob Diebel, Joni Dean, Ralph Erickson, Franklin
James, David Sharpe, Councilperson Phil Caravello, Dan Glynn.


CALL TO ORDER
1. Call to order: Called to order at 1730 by Chair Ralph Erickson.
2. July 9, 2018 Minutes. Approved by Sandra with a second by Franklin.


Carried.
3. Communications:


a. Update on the Whitewater Park Project: Dan reported that the economic
impact study is 99% complete and sent back to the University of
Wisconsin Professor. The visitor impacts to the city were based on nine
different parks. Bob is the committee representative on the Steering
Committee which met for the first time three weeks ago where discussion
ensued regarding dam removal. The River Alliance is coming to speak at
their next meeting about removing the dam which makes an
improvement in the water park possibilities. Dan reported the grant is at
the administrative level of the DNR and is waiting to hear about a meeting
date.


b. Update on Park and Open Space Plan: Dan reported that the survey is out
on the web site. There will be an upcoming story also in the Stoughton
Hub. Results will be reported to a public information meeting and then
proceed to a City Council meeting.


c. Update on bike route sign installation: Phil has installed 26 signs
following the restrictions for specific posts. He has 16 signs left to install.
These may require separate posts and money will be needed. To discuss
at a future meeting.


OLD BUSINESS.
4. Amundson Trail from Stoughton Hospital to Ridge Street. Jim got six bids for


the project and chose a company out of Flat Rock, Alabama with a
competitive price of $42,000. Tress on the path will be removed and the trail
may go around aesthetic trees. Stone paving will be completed with gravel
and limestone chips on the top. The project will take two weeks to complete.
The bid has gone to the Council for final approval.


NEW BUSINESS.
5. Future Agenda Items. None to report.


ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 1812 with a motion by David and a
second by Bob. Carried.


Respectfully submitted,
Joni Dean







 


 


PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
September 18, 2018 
6:00 PM 
Stoughton Fire Department Training Room  
 
Present: Alderpersons: Phil Caravello, Denise Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Nicole Wiessinger, and 
Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn 
Guests: Pat Groom  
 
1. Call to Order 
Meeting called to order at 7:28 pm.  
 
2. Approval of the Minutes from August 21, 2018   
 
Motion to approve the minutes as presented by Duranczyk and seconded by Wiessinger. Motion 
carried unanimously.  
 
3. Communications 
 
Pickleball Court Construction Update 
Hirsch shared her concern about there still being a drainage issue. Groom shared that there was 
fabric over the drain and it drained properly after the fabric was removed. Glynn shared that the 
painting should be scheduled soon.  
 
Whitewater Park Update 
Glynn shared that we haven’t received any communication from the DNR regarding the 
Stewardship Fund grant. The Steering Committees meetings have started with the second 
meeting centered around the dam and lake levels. Hirsch shared that John Reimer from Dane 
County and Rob Davis from the DNR were in attendance. Hirsch shared that the Steering 
Committee is working on a decision to see if dam removal is in the best interest of the whitewater 
park. There may be some safety reasons to get rid of the dam. The next step would be to have a 
study to determine if dam removal and dam design would affect water levels. Hirsch shared that 
she was surprised about the time and cost involved with operating the dam. Duranczyk shared 
that there should be a formula for splitting any potential revenue between park projects and the 
City’s general fund. The committee agreed with her.  
 
Yahara River Trail Extension 
 
 
Kegonsa Afterschool Program 
Glynn shared the progress of the afterschool program at Kegonsa School. There are some 
financial concerns with the program since 82% of the children needed a reduced fee. Glynn 
shared that he has been working with the Mayor and the Finance Director to find alternative 
funding sources.  
 
Bike Route Sign Installation  
Caravello shared that around 30 signs have been installed. He shared that poles will be needed 
to finish the project since there are no street signs on a few roads. He estimated about a dozen 
poles would be needed. The plan of action to move forward was to have locations mapped for the 
poles and get the utilities located in those areas. The committee agreed to use Park Development 
funds to purchase the 12 poles.  
 
Old Business 
 
4. Friends of Stoughton Parks Formation (Discussion) 
Glynn shared that he watched a webinar on creating a parks foundation. A follow-up phone call 
with the Executive Director with National Association Park Foundation was helpful. He gave 
advice on how to move forward which was to identify 30 potential members and send them a 
letter. The committee agreed to help by sending Glynn a list of community members they believe 
who would be interested. Duranczyk shared that there may be potential for fundraising by having 


 







 


 


a membership fee to the friends of Stoughton parks. This is backed up by the CORP survey 
which indicated that many people were in favor of paying more for parks and recreational 
services.     
 
5. Park and Open Space Plan (Discussion) 
Duranczyk shared that she would like to see the survey results and see if the goals correlate to 
the survey results. Hirsch shared that she would like to go over a revised draft at the next 
committee meeting. Groom shared that the plan identified a lot of accessibility issues and the 
costs involved to get the parks compliant will be significant.  
 
6. Nordic Ridge Mini Park (Discussion) 
Glynn shared that he got the Nordic Ridge plat and that there is a lot designated for a mini park. 
Glynn shared that he was unaware of the history behind it. Duraczyk told the committee that the 
thought behind it was the location of the lot is an area of the development that is the densest. 
Duranczyk also shared that it could be moved if the location is not optimal. Hirsch shared that a 
better location may be near the apartments.   
 
7. Safe Routes to School Maps (Discussion) 
Hirsch shared to look into an app for this that children could use. Caravello shared that he 
developed the maps by riding his bike around the city and mapped out routes he felt were the 
safest and connected major points of interest like schools. Glynn shared that this was the 
recommendation on how to do it by the Safe Routes to School literature he read.  
 
8. Park Ordinance (Discussion) 
Hirsch shared that the committee will know more information because an updated draft of the 
open space plan will be updated. Duranczyk shared that factors such as park classification will 
determine amenities within the park and how the layout should be.   
 
9. Future Agenda Items   
Yahara River Trail 
Park & Open Space Plan 
Pickleball Court  
Whitewater Park  
Park Friends Group Formation  
Purchase of Bike Route Sign Poles 
 
Adjournment 
Motion made by Wiessinger and seconded by Caravello at 9:18 pm. Motion carried unanimously.  







PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, September 26, 2018  
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall  


Present:  Chair, Greg Jenson, Alderpersons Kathleen Tass Johnson, Timothy Riley, Pat 
O’Connor, and Police Chief Greg Leck 


Guests:   


Call to Order:  Chair Jenson called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m.   


Communications:  Chief Leck gave a brief update on new employees and announced that 
a conditional offer has been extended to fill the last vacancy.   


Old Business: None 


      2. Minutes of 7-25-18:   Moved by; O’Connor, 2nd By Riley, to approve the minutes of 7-
25-18.                                    Motion carried: 4-0   


New Business 


3. Discussion and possible action to approve Amending Section 70-176, Parking 
Prohibited at all Times, to create Sub Section (75) “No parking on the South side of 
Roby Road 185 feet east from Nygaard Street. 


Chief Leck reported that he had received citizen requests to look at the Roby & 
Nygaard intersection for sightlines related to traffic.  Leck explained that this 
ordinance and Item 4 were designed to improve sightlines and reduce the potential 
for crashes.  The parking prohibition would result in approximately six street parking 
stalls being eliminated.  O’Connor questioned whether there have been crashes at 
this location.  Leck advised he was not sue but citizens had reported near misses.  
O’Connor also questioned whether the business (Deak’s) had been notified of the 
proposed changes.  Leck advised that normally regarding traffic sightlines the PD 
does not notify nearby businesses.  O’Connor then asked for the matter to be tabled 
until the business was notified. 


Motion by: O’Connor to table, 2nd By Johnson    Motion carried 3-0 (Riley abstained) 


 
4. Discussion and possible action to approve Amending Section 70-176, Parking 


Prohibited at all Times to create Sub Section (76) no parking on the both sides of 
Nygaard Street, 25 feet south of Roby Road. 


 
See discussion above. 
 
Motion by: O’Connor to table, 2nd By: Jenson.    Vote 3-0 (Riley abstained)  


5. Discussion and possible action on joining Dane County’s Restorative Justice 
Program  


Chief Leck referred the committee to the materials in the packet.  Leck reported that 
he had attended a presentation meeting with staff and Judge Roethe that explained 
the purpose of the program.  O’Connor had questions regarding the process the 
program would follow.  Leck explained that most referrals would come from the 
officers that an offender might be a good fit for the program.  Restorative Justice 







Public Safety Committee Meeting Minutes 
September 28, 2011 
Page 2 
 


staff would train the officers on what to look for in potential offenders that would be a 
good fit to the program.  Leck advised the Municipal Judge Roethe was supportive of 
the program.  Other discussion followed and O’Connor expressed the need for more 
detail on the process. Leck advised that would likely occur with the officer training.  


Motion by Riley to approve joining DCRJP, 2nd by Johnson. Motion carried 3-1 
(O’Connor voting no)   


6. Discussion and possible action regarding an application for change of Agent: Kwik Trip 
#738, located at 1231 E. Main St., requests appointment of Karl Wirag 


Leck reported that this was a routine change in agent and that all was in order 
recommending approval. 


Motion by Riley to Approve, 2nd by O’Connor. No discussion.  Motion carried 4-0 


7. Discussion and possible action regarding an application for change of Agent: 
Walgreens #07519, located at 1705 US HWY 51, requests Jacqueline A. Shaffer 


Leck reported that this was a routine change in agent and that all was in order 
recommending approval. 


Motion by Johnson to Approve, 2nd by Riley. No discussion.  Motion carried 4-0 


8.  Discussion and possible action to approve Amending Section 70-156, Designated 
Through Streets, to create Sub Section (27) designating Vernon Street as a through 
Street. 


Leck explained that this would designate Vernon Street as a Through Street allowing 
for all cross traffic to be governed by Stop Signs. 


Motion by O’Connor to Approve, 2nd by Johnson. No further discussion.  Motion             
carried 4-0 


9. Discussion and possible action on approving the 2018 Crowd Control Grant. 


Leck explained that along with the Cities of Monona & Verona, and the Villages of McFarland 


& Oregon, the Stoughton PD applied for and was awarded a Crowd Control Grant from the WI 


Department of Military Affairs (WDMA) to establish a 13 member Crowd Control Unit.  The 


grant is an 80/20 percent match to outfit and train the unit.  Leck advised that in the 2018 


Budget the department have funds to comply with the 20 percent match as part of this year’s 


proposal to begin purchasing equipment to outfit staff with crowd control equipment. 


Leck advised that the three cities will provide three members and the two villages will supply 


two each.  Leck stated that a Mutual Aid agreement would be prepared for the five agencies.  


Further, that the unit will be available to regional departments in the event of large-scale crowd 


control needs.  Leck was looking for approval to accept the grant and move forward with the 


project.  


 







Public Safety Committee Meeting Minutes 
September 28, 2011 
Page 3 
 


           Motion by O’Connor to Approve the Grant conditional on the Mayor’s decision to also 
forward to the City Council if necessary, 2nd by Johnson. No further discussion.  Motion              
carried 4-0  


10.   Future agenda items:   


Return of Items 3 & 4 (Roby/Nygaard parking) 


Public Notification System as inquired by Alderperson Johnson. 


Food Carts/Special Event Licensing 


Review of the Residential Traffic Management Program 


 


Moved by O’Connor, 2nd By Riley to adjourn at 6:43 p.m.  Carried unanimously.   


 


Respectfully Submitted,  
Greg Leck, Chief of Police 







CITY OF STOUGHTON FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES  


OCTOBER 9, 2018 @ 6:00 PM 


COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 321 S FOURTH STREET, STOUGHTON, WI  


 


Present 


Denise Duranczyk, Pat O’Connor, Greg Jenson and Mayor Tim Swadley  


 


Absent and Excused 


Kathleen Johnson  


 


Others Present  


Clerk Licht, Planning Director Scheel, Finance Director Friedl, Utilities Director Kardasz,  


Assistant Utilities Director Hoops  


 


Call to Order 


Duranczyk called the meeting to order at 6:07 p.m.  


 


Communications 


Duranczyk thanked Utilities Director Kardasz for his years of service.  


 


Reports 


None 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


Approval of the September 25, 2018 Finance Committee Minutes 


Motion by Jenson, second by Duranczyk to approve the September 25, 2018 Finance 


Committee Minutes. Motion carried 4-0. 


 


Discussion and possible action related to the final agreement between the State of 


Wisconsin and the City of Stoughton for costs for road improvements to US Highway 51 


Scheel said that the future project is not a total road reconstruction. There will be 3 


roundabouts as part of the future project. There is a public information meeting that will be in 


November.  


 


Motion by O’Connor, second Jenson to approve the final agreement between the State of 


Wisconsin and the City of Stoughton for costs for road improvements to US HWY 51. Motion 


carried 4-0. 


 


Discussion and possible action related to the 2019 Utilities Operating and CIP Budgets 


Finance Director Friedl presented the Utilities budget information.  He addressed the utility 


rate increases as well as the overview for the operating and CIP budgets.  


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Duranczyk to approve the 2019 Utilities Operating and CIP 







Budgets. Motion carried 4-0. 


 


 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
Unassigned Fund Balance Policy revisions 


Debt Management Policy revisions 


Review of financial reports and fund balances in the Library, Senior Center, and Food Pantry 


Funds 


Mad Rep 


 


Adjournment 


Motion by Jenson, second by O’Connor to adjourn at 6:48 p.m. Motion carried 4-0. 





		01-River and Trails Task Force MinutesSeptember2018.pdf

		02-PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 9-18-18.pdf

		03-PSC Minutes 9-26-18.pdf

		04-10-9-2018  Finance Minutes.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Setting a special charge for garbage and recycling collection fees. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
N/A 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
This special charge will collect the $745,000 that is built into the 2019 budget. 


 
File Number: R-186-2018 


 
 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 13, 2018 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton provides contracted residential and limited commercial curbside garbage 


and recycling service; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton incurs contractual and administrative expenses in providing this service; 


and   


 


WHEREAS, it is administratively efficient to bill and collect fees on the property tax roll as a special charge 


to fund this service: 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton sets a special charge for garbage and 


recycling service in an annual amount of $165.00 per unit and that this special charge remains in force until 


revoked or amended by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton; and 


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that city staff are 


directed to place the special charge on the property tax roll.  


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 








 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589 
 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 


 


Resolution approving revisions to the City of Stoughton Fund Balance Policy 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee Approved 5-0 with Mayor Swadley voting 


 
Fiscal Impact: Conservative approach to Unassigned Fund Balance goals 
 
File Number: 


 
R - 187- 2018 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 13, 2018 


 


WHEREAS, it is recommended that revisions to the City of Stoughton Fund Balance Policy be 


adopted, and; 


WHEREAS, your Finance Committee met on October 23, 2018 and recommends approval of 


the following changes 


 Define General Fund Balance/Reserve Fund as General Fund Unassigned Fund 


Balance less Unassigned Fund Balance amounts for any Other Governmental Fund 


not specifically shown as Nonspendable Fund Balance in the General Fund.  


 Eliminate the following verbiage to allow for one time use of Unassigned Fund 


Balance in years the City does not exceed 25%. 


o In any given year, if there are no funds in excess of the 25%, there will be no 


committed funds for “one-time” purchases as defined in item 2. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton 


that the revisions to the Fund Balance Policy be adopted. 


 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote    







     City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Fund Balance Policy 


(REVISED NOVEMBER __, 2018) 


 
A formal written policy governing the purpose and acceptable range of the City’s various fund 


balances is an effective financial management tool to responsibly utilize the City’s resources, to 


ensure the continued provision of services to residents, and to demonstrate a commitment to long 


term financial planning.   


 


Although fund balance primarily focuses on the City’s general fund, financial resources available 


in other funds should also be considered in assessing the adequacy of unrestricted fund balance 


(i.e. the total of the amounts in the various fund balances reported as committed, assigned, and 


unassigned).  It is essential that the City maintain adequate levels of fund balance in the various 


funds to mitigate current and future risks (e.g., revenue shortfalls and unanticipated 


expenditures). 


 


Credit rating agencies monitor levels of fund balance and unrestricted fund balance in a 


government’s general fund to evaluate continued creditworthiness.  Likewise, laws and 


regulations often govern appropriate levels of fund balance and unrestricted fund balance for 


state and local governments. 


 


Fund balance will be classified into the following five categories depicting the relative strength 


of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used, with the 


highest level of constraint being “nonspendable,” and the lowest being “unassigned.” 


1.   NONSPENDABLE 


Nonspendable fund balance amounts are those not in a spendable form or are required to be 


maintained intact.  Examples are: 


 Assets that will never be converted to cash (i.e. inventories). 


 Assets that will not convert to cash soon enough to affect the current period (i.e. long-


term portion of receivables and the nonfinancial assets held for resale such as land). 


 Resources that must be maintained intact based on legal or contractual requirements (i.e. 


principal of an endowment or the capital of a revolving loan fund). 


 


2.  RESTRICTED 


Restricted fund balance amounts are constrained to specific purposes by their providers, through 


constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.  If amounts collected from the long-term 


portion of receivables or from other long-term assets held for sale are also limited externally in 


how they can be spent, they would be shown as restricted instead of nonspendable.  Funds can 


become restricted because of or through: 


 







 Other governments through laws and regulations. 


 Grantors or contributors through agreements. 


 Creditors through debt covenants or other contracts. 


 Enabling legislation that limits how revenue can be used. 


 


3.  COMMITTED 


 


Committed fund balance amounts are constrained to specific purposes by the City itself, using its 


highest level of decision-making authority.  Committed fund balance amounts cannot be used for 


any other purpose unless the City takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the 


constraint.  (Super Majority Vote) 


 


 The action to commit the resources must be taken by the end of the reporting period. 


 Note that any resources accumulated as “stabilization funds” are sometimes reported as 


“committed.” 


 If amounts collected from the long-term portion of receivables or from other long-term 


assets held for sale are also limited internally, they would be shown as “committed” 


instead of “nonspendable.” 


 


4.  ASSIGNED 


 


Assigned fund balance amounts are funds the City intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent 


can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body 


delegates the authority.  The City Finance Director is authorized to designate funds as “assigned” 


if the governing body does not express the intent of the fund. 


 


 Assigned fund balance does not have to come from the governing body. 


 Assigned fund balance does not have to have formal action to be considered assigned. 


 Amounts in excess of “nonspendable,” “restricted,” and “committed” fund balance in 


funds other than the general fund automatically will be reported as “assigned” fund 


balance. 


 If amounts collected from the long-term portion of receivables or from other long-term 


assets held for sale are limited in this manner, they would be shown as “assigned” instead 


of “nonspendable.” 


 Amounts in “assigned” fund balance can never cause “unassigned” fund balance to be a 


deficit. 


 This is the category used to reflect the portion of existing fund balance that is planned for 


use to eliminate a projected deficit in the subsequent year’s budget. 


 


5.  UNASSIGNED  


 


Unassigned fund balance amounts are available for any purpose.  If the general fund has net 


resources in excess of the other four categories that surplus is considered “unassigned.”  


 “Unassigned” fund balances are typically reported only in the general fund.   


 







The order in which unrestricted resources are to be used when any of these amounts are available 


for expenditure will be “committed,” “assigned,” and then “unassigned.” 


GENERAL FUND BALANCE (RESERVE FUND *) 


 


An adequate general fund (Reserve Fund *) balance provides resources to: 


 Maintain sufficient working capital to finance operating expenditures without short-term 


borrowing for cash flow purposes.   


 Temporarily finance unanticipated expenditures or unusual fluctuation in the City’s 


revenue sources. 


 


In determining the acceptable range of general fund (Reserve Fund *) balance, the City considers 


the following: 


 


 Historical stability of the City’s revenues, expenditures, and mill rate. 


 Timing of revenue collections in relation to payments made for operational expenditures. 


 Anticipated growth in the City’s valuation and/or services and programs to be provided to 


City residents. 


 Perceived exposure to significant one-time outlays (e.g. disasters, immediate capital 


needs, state budget cuts) 


 The potential drain upon general fund resources from other funds as well as the 


availability of resources in other funds (i.e. deficits in other funds may require that a 


higher level of unrestricted fund balance be maintained in the general fund, just as, the 


availability of resources in other funds may reduce the amount of unrestricted fund 


balance needed in the general fund). 


 Liquidity (i.e. a disparity between when financial resources actually become available to 


make payments and the average maturity of related liabilities may require that a higher 


level of resources be maintained). 


 Commitments and assignments (i.e. governments may wish to maintain higher levels of 


unrestricted fund balance to compensate for any portion of unrestricted fund balance 


already committed or assigned by the government for a specific purpose). 


 It is appropriate to exclude from consideration resources that have been committed or 


assigned to some other purpose and focus on unassigned fund balance rather than on 


unrestricted fund balance.   


 


Accordingly, the City seeks to maintain its “unassigned” general fund balance (Reserve Fund *) 


at 20-25% of total general fund annual budgeted expenditures.  In addition, any amount at year 


end in excess of the 25% will be allocated in the following manner: 


  


1.) Funds in excess of the anticipated year end fund balance over the 25% will be 


committed to stabilization of the City’s Maintenance Reserve funds (Equipment 


Maintenance, Building Maintenance and IT Maintenance Funds). 


2.) The remaining balance of the unused excess fund balance (Reserve Fund *) each year 


will be committed to “one-time” equipment purchases, projects, or expenses as 


recommended by the Director of Finance and approved by the Common Council. 







The Finance Committee will review the Reserve Fund * annually following the City’s Annual 


Audit to recommend allocations of excess Reserve Fund * to the Common Council. 


 


A 2/3 vote of the entire Common Council is required to allocate fund balance (Reserve Fund *). 


 


To maintain the City’s general fund balance (Reserve fund *), the City shall: 


 


 Strive to eliminate the budgeted use of fund balance.   


 Allocate any operational surplus at the end of the fiscal year as detailed above, with 


Council consideration given to requested carry over amounts, yet ensuring this policy’s 


requirements are maintained. 


 Caution shall be exercised to ensure the utilization of fund balance (Reserve Fund *) does 


not result in a spike in the required subsequent year tax levy. 


 Annually where the “unassigned” fund balance (Reserve Fund *) is in excess of the 


recommended amount, the allocation of the excess shall be in accordance with the 


previously stated section of this policy. 


 


In addition, the City Council shall establish a contingency reserve account in the annual 


operating budget to provide for unanticipated expenditures of a nonrecurring nature, or to meet 


unexpected small increases in service delivery costs for any budget year.  This account shall be 


funded at a minimum of 0.1% (.001) and a maximum of 1.0% (.01) of the annual general fund 


budgeted expenditures.  The City Council may fund the contingency reserve account at a level 


higher than the maximum 1.0% of the annual general fund budgeted expenditures if it deems the 


action necessary.  


 


It shall be the responsibility of the Finance Director to monitor the aforementioned reserve 


balances on a regular basis and report material deviations to the City Council. 


 


* -Defined as General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance less Unassigned Fund Balance amounts 


for any Other Governmental Fund not specifically shown as Nonspendable Fund Balance in the 


General Fund. 


 







City of Stoughton


General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance Analysis


As of December 31, 2017 and previously


2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012


General Fund 


Fund Balance


Nonspendable 1,016,502$        991,095$           1,052,968$        947,919$           921,928$           896,264$           


Restricted -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        


Committed -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        


Assigned 1,119,700          1,069,756          1,038,261          1,017,182          909,706             871,225             


Unassigned 3,743,097          3,364,758          3,231,239          2,930,387          2,965,631          2,767,691          


5,879,299$        5,425,609$        5,322,468$        4,895,488$        4,797,265$        4,535,180$        


Other Governmental Funds


Unassigned Deficit Fund Balances 


 - Potiental funded by General Fund's unassigned category (does not include TIF Deficits the City has already setup Advances between General Fund and TIF's).  


    The amount of advances are shown within Nonspendable Fund Balance in the General Fund.


Opera House (331,496)$         (247,842)$         (215,827)$         (129,534)$         (88,272)$           (56,359)$           


Economic Development (15,741)             (6,746)               -                        -                        -                        -                        


Redevelopment Authority (35,692)             (65,843)             -                        -                        -                        -                        


(382,929)$         (320,431)$         (215,827)$         (129,534)$         (88,272)$           (56,359)$           


General Fund


Available Unassigned Fund Balance 3,360,168$        3,044,327$        3,015,412$        2,800,853$        2,877,359$        2,711,332$        


Budgeted Expenditures 12,934,046$      12,636,498$      12,188,004$      11,725,862$      11,150,755$      11,159,034$      


Compliance


 with Minimum Fund Balance Policy 25.98% 24.09% 24.74% 23.89% 25.80% 24.30%


Availability to 25% with unassigned monies 126,657$           


Availability to 20% with unassigned monies 773,359$           


*** Information compiled from Issued Financial Statements to evaluate monies available for spending in 2018.





		11a-R-187-2018 Fund Balance Policy Resolution.pdf

		11b-Fund Balance Policy - REVISED.pdf

		11c-Unassigned Fund Balance Analysis.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589 
 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve an Interagency Agreement and accept 


the Crowd Control Grant on behalf of the Stoughton Police Department. 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Public Safety Approved 4-0 


 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
File Number: 


 
R-188-2018 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 13, 2018 


 
WHEREAS, the City has a desire to have a law enforcement crowd control unit to protect the rights of those 


participating in events while maintaining the safety of those involved and the citizens of this city, and 


 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Police Department intends to enter into an Interagency Agreement with the 


Cities of Monona and Verona, and the Villages of McFarland and Oregon to form a combined Unit that is 


equipped and properly trained to manage large crowd events, and 


 


WHEREAS, the Interagency Agreement will provide for the shared Unit and provide a standing Mutual Aid 


agreement between the communities, and 


 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Police Department applied for and was awarded a WI Emergency Management 


Grant to help fund the Combined Unit, and  


 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Public Safety Committee met on 9-26-18 to consider the approval of the grant and 


now recommends the approval of the Crowd Control Unit, therefore,  


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby directed and authorized to enter into an Interagency Agreement and accept the Crowd Control Grant 


as recommended. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote    


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; Creating Sub Section (76) relating to 


parking restrictions on the both sides of Nygaard Street 25 feet south of Roby Road. 


Committee Action:    Public Safety committee recommends approval 3-0 


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O-25-2018 First Reading:  


Second Reading: 


November 13, 2018 


November 27, 2018 


 


1. The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Amend Sec. 70-176 Parking Prohibited at all times. To create Sub Section (76) relating to parking 


restrictions on both sides of Nygaard Street, 25 feet south of Roby Road. 


 


          Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times. 


No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose of and while 


actually engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers and while the vehicle is attended 


by a licensed operator so that it may be moved promptly in case of an emergency or to avoid obstruction of traffic, 


upon any of the following highways or parts of highways:  


 


(75) On both sides of Nygaard Street, 25 feet south of Roby Road.  


 


 


2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; Creating Sub Section (75) relating to 


parking restrictions on the South side of Roby Road from Nygaard Street 185 feet East. 


Committee Action:    Public Safety committee recommends 3-0 


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O-26 -2018 First Reading:  


Second Reading:  


November 13, 2018 


November  27, 2018 


 


1. The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Amend Sec. 70-176 Parking Prohibited at all times. To create Sub Section (75) relating to parking 


restrictions on the south side of Roby Road 185 feet east from Nygaard Street.. 


 


          Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times. 


No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose of and while 


actually engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers and while the vehicle is attended 


by a licensed operator so that it may be moved promptly in case of an emergency or to avoid obstruction of traffic, 


upon any of the following highways or parts of highways:  


 


(75) On the south side of Roby Road 185 feet east from Nygaard Street  


 


 


2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Timothy Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 







 
 


October 4, 2018 


 


Deak’s 


1017 Nygaard St. 


Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


Dear Property Owner, 


 


This letter is to inform you that the Stoughton Public Safety Committee is considering 


changes to the Parking Ordinances that will effect parking on Roby Road and Nygaard 


Street.  These changes are being considered to improve traffic sightlines and reduce the 


potential for traffic crashes at the intersection.  You are being notified because of your 


business at this location.  


 


Specifically, the proposed changes would prohibit parking on Nygaard Street on both 


side of the street, 25 feet south of Roby Road.  The second proposed change is to prohibit 


parking on Roby Road on the south side, 185 feet east from Nygaard Street. 


 


These Ordinance changes have been requested by citizens and recommended by the 


Police Department in an effort to reduce the potential of traffic crashes by improving 


traffic sightlines. 


 


If you wish to comment on these changes, you may do so by attending the next Stoughton 


Public Safety Committee meeting on October 24, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. at City Hall.  


You may also notify me of your concerns, if you are unable to attend, and I will forward 


them to the Committee on your behalf.   


  


Thank you, 


 


Chief Greg Leck  


Stoughton Police Department 


gleck@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


608-873-4057 (direct) 



mailto:gleck@ci.stoughton.wi.us



		12a-O-26-2018-Amending Section 70-176 Creating Sub (75) Restricting Parking Roby Road south side 185 feet east from Nygaard St.pdf

		12b-Deak's Ltr Parking 2018.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Chapter 70-176 (61) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to parking restrictions on 


the Veterans Road between the intersections of U.S. 51 and Vernon Street. 


Committee Action:    Public Safety committee recommends  


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O- 27-2018 First Reading:  


Second Reading:  


November 13, 2018 


November 27, 2018 


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Section 1. Sec. 70-176 (61) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is amended as follows:  


 


         Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times. 


No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose of and while 


actually engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers and while the vehicle is 


attended by a licensed operator so that it may be moved promptly in case of an emergency or to avoid 


obstruction of traffic, upon any of the following highways or parts of highways:  


… 


(61) On both sides of Veterans Road between the intersections of U.S Highway 51 and Vernon Street, except 


that parking is allowed on the west side of Veterans Road for 270 feet south from U.S. Highway 51.  


 


 


Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Timothy Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589 
 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” 


Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the American Cancer Society Relay for Life for the 


Holiday Home Tour Opening Gala 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Public Safety Approved 3-0. 


 
Fiscal Impact: None 


 
File Number: 


 
R-189-2018 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 13, 2018 


 


WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to approve an Application for a Temporary Class 


“B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and a Special Event License to the  American Cancer Society 


Relay for Life for the Holiday Home Tour Opening ; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee reviewed the Application for a Temporary Class 


“B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and a Special Event License, and recommends approval, now 


therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby directed and authorized to execute the Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” 


Retailer’s License and a Special Event License based on no fines or fees due to the City of 


Stoughton, attached hereto and incorporated as part of this resolution, between the City of 


Stoughton and the American Cancer Society Relay for Life.   


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 


 







hlicht

Text Box

  



hlicht

Text Box

   











hlicht

Text Box

    



hlicht

Text Box

   



hlicht

Text Box

    



hlicht

Text Box

    



hlicht

Text Box

   











hlicht

Text Box

     



hlicht

Text Box

   



hlicht

Text Box

   



hlicht

Text Box

     





		16a-R-189-2018 Approving Temp Class B and Special Event for Relay for Life Gala.pdf

		16b-Sepcial Event for  Relay for Lfie Gala.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589 
 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving designated Snowmobile routes in City right of ways  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Public Safety Approved 3-0. 


 
Fiscal Impact: None 


 
File Number: 


 
R-190-2018 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 13, 2018 


 


WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to approve a request from the Viking Snow Drifters 


Snowmobile club to continue use of  the trail to access BBG’s, Culvers, Arby’s, Deaks KFC and 


Kwik Trip located along HWY 51 within the City limits; and  


 


WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee met on October 24, 2018 to consider the terms of the 


request from the Viking Snow Drifters and recommends approval; now therefore  


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby directed and authorized to approve the request for continued use of the 


snowmobile trailing leading to the above stated businesses.   


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 





























































		17a-R-190-2018 Approving Designated Snowmobile Routes in City right of ways.pdf

		17b-Snowmobile routes 2018.pdf






 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Lifting the Council Imposed Moratorium on the Blacksmith Shop 


  


  


 
File Number: 


 
R- 191-2018 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
      November 13, 2018 


WHEREAS, In March 2017, the council rejected the RDA’s plan to demolish the Highway 


Trailer complex and enacted a temporary moratorium on demolishing structures in historic 


districts and in the Downtown Design Overlay District, which included the Highway Trailer 


Complex; and  


WHEREAS, The Xouncil removed the  moratorium on the Highway Trailer Complex, with the 


exception of the  Blacksmith Shop, a week later after Ald. Greg Jenson suggested it was the most 


architecturally significant building in the complex; and  


WHEREAS, The City Council on February 27, 2018 approved authorizing and directing the 


proper City official(s) to authorize the funds needed up to $750,000 for the Redevelopment 


Authority (RDA) to start the demolition process for the Highway Trailer building complex 


excluding the Blacksmith shop. 


WHEREAS, The City Council approved  R-114-2018:  Lifting of Council-Imposed Demolition 


Moratorium for the East Park Historic District, East Side Historic District, Northwest Side 


Historic District and Southwest Side Historic District; and  


 


WHEREAS, the entire Highway Trailer Complex has been demolished with the exception of the 


Blacksmith Shop; and now therefore  


 


BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton lift the demolition 


moratorium of the Blacksmith Shop. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


  


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             







Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 
 


 








Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, October 23, 2018 @ 7:00 p.m.   


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Denise 


Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson,  Tom Majewski, 


Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, Timothy Riley and Nicole Wiessinger 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


Clerk Licht called the roll and noted there were 9 alders present. Riley, Reeves and Caravello were 


absent and excused.  


 


Mayor Swadley announced that there will be a Town Hall meeting with DOT on November 8th from 


5:00-7:00 p.m. at the Fire Station.  


 


Update on In-person Absentee Voting: In-person absentee voting started on October 15th. It will go 


through Friday, November 2nd.  For the rest of this week hours are 7:30 a.m.-4:30 p.m.  Next week 


there will be extended hours: Monday, October 29th- Thursday November 1st we will be open 7:30 


a.m.-6:00 p.m., and Friday November 2nd 7:30 a.m.-5:00 p.m.  As of 4:30 today there were 589 


returned ballots.    


 


Minutes and Reports: the following minutes were entered into the record.  


Planning Commission (9/10/2018); Landmarks (9/20/2018); Whitewater Park Steering Committee 


(8/20/2018, 9/17/2018) ; Tree Commission (8/9/2018) ; Finance Committee ( 9/25/2018)  


 


 


Public Comment Period:  


Linda Muller, 208 N. Gjerston St., spoke in support of R-176-2018.She added that the project would 


provide housing for low income families in Stoughton.  


 


Sharon Mason-Boersma, 243 E. McKinley St., spoke in favor of the Free Health Clinic Speakeasy for 


Healthcare.   


 


 


CONSENT AGENDA 


A. October 9, 2018 Council minutes 


B.  R-175-2018 – Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue 


Operator Licenses to various applicants.  


C. Stoughton Utilities Payments due List Report; Stoughton Utilities Committee Minutes 


(9/17/2018); Stoughton Utilities July 2018 Financial Summary; Stoughton Utilities August 


2018 Financial Summary; Stoughton Utilities August 2018 Statistical Report  


 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by Johnson to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 9-0. 


  


 







 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


O-23-2018- Providing for the Direct Annexation of a Portion of the Town of Dunkirk and a Portion of 


the Town of Rutland to the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin   


 


Motion by Bartlett, second by Jenson to approve O-23-2018 providing for the Direct Annexation of a 


Portion of the Town of Dunkirk and a Portion of the Town of Rutland to the City of Stoughton, Dane 


County, Wisconsin.    


 


Johnson said she was opposed to the annexation with concerns to the current residents of the Towns.  


Scheel said that there was not currently any residents on the land.  


 


Bartlett said that he was in support of the annexation as it would allow Stoughton to grow and allow the 


schools to grow.  


 


Hirsch addressed traffic concerns with a new development close to HWY 51.  


 


Boersma said that we should focus on the also the east side OF Stoughton. Duranczyk said that we 


should make it a priority.  


 


Majewski said that the location does not make sense. The developer has the right to request the 


annexation and the City has the right to deny.  


 


Motion carried on a vote of 7-2 with Boersma and Johnson voting ‘no’.  


 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


R-176 -2018- Approving a Certified Survey Map at 309 Pine Street which is owned by the 


Wisconsin Partnership for Housing Development, Dane County, Wisconsin.  


 


Motion by Bartlett, second by Jenson to approve R-176-2018 Approving a Certified Survey Map 


at 309 Pine Street which is owned by the Wisconsin Partnership for Housing Development, Dane 


County, Wisconsin. Motion carried 9-0. 


 


R- 177-2018- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) land division (CSM) request by 


Bryan Schilling for property located at 1966 Quam Point Road, Town of Dunn, Dane County, 


Wisconsin. 


 


Motion by Bartlett, second by Jenson to approve R-177-2018 Approving an extra-territorial 


jurisdictional (ETJ) land division (CSM) request by Bryan Schilling for property located at 1966 


Quam Point Road, Town of Dunn, Dane County, Wisconsin. Motion carried 9-0. 


 


R-178-2018- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) land division (CSM) request by 


Gregory Shaw for property located on Taylor Lane, Town of Dunkirk, Dane County, Wisconsin  







 


Motion Bartlett, second by Jenson to approve R-178-2018 Approving an extra-territorial 


jurisdictional (ETJ) land division (CSM) request by Gregory Shaw for property located on 


Taylor Lane, Town of Dunkirk, Dane County, Wisconsin. Motion carried 9-0. 


 


O-24-2018- Repealing Section 78-913 and Repealing and Recreating Section 78-517 of the 


Stoughton Municipal Code  


 


Bartlett offered O-24-2018 as a first reading. It will be back before the Council on November 13.  


 


R-179-2018- Confirming the Mayor’s appoint Citizen Appointment of Natalie Norlin to the Arts 


Council, pursuant to 2-127 of the Municipal Code  


 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by Hirsch to approve R-179-2018 Confirming the Mayor’s 


appoint Citizen Appointment of Natalie Norlin to the Arts Council, pursuant to 2-127 of the 


Municipal Code . Motion carried 9-0. 


 


R-180-2018- Confirming the Mayor’s Citizen Appointment of Fred Hundt to the Housing 


Authority, pursuant to 2-127 of the Municipal Code  


 


Motion by Boersma, second by Duranczyk to approve R-180-2018 Confirming the Mayor’s 


Citizen Appointment of Fred Hundt to the Housing Authority, pursuant to 2-127 of the 


Municipal Code. Motion carried 9-0.  


 


R-181-2018-Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class 


“B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Stoughton Free Health Clinic 


for the Speakeasy for Healthcare Event 


 


Motion by Jenson, second by O’Connor to approve R-181-2018 Authorizing and directing the 


proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and 


Special Event License to the Stoughton Free Health Clinic for the Speakeasy for Healthcare 


Event.  Motion carried 8-0 with Boersma abstaining.  


 


 


Adjournment 


Motion by Jenson, second by Majewski to adjourn at 7:44 p.m. Motion carried 9-0. 








 


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from 


the following applicants: 


 


Name      Place of Business 


  Henry Guzman    Nauti Norske 


  Jonathan Roth     Stoughton Spirits 


  Lisa Travis     Whatever Bar 


  Michael Griggs    American Legion Post 59   


  Samuel Stenbroton    Viking Brew Pub  


  Sarina Becker     Reverend Jim’s Saloon    


    


 


WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an 


Operator Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named 


applicants. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee 


Action: 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: R-182-2018 


 
Date Introduced:   November 13, 2018 








         NOTICE OF PUBLIC BUDGET HEARING FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON


Notice is hereby given that on Tuesday, November 13, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. the Common Council will meet at the


City Council Chambers on the Second floor of the Public Safety Building at 321 South 4th Street for the


purpose of holding a PUBLIC HEARING on the PROPOSED BUDGET for 2019. The proposed budget is


available for inspection at City Hall, 381 E Main Street, from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.


Monday through Friday. The following is a summary of the Proposed 2019 Budget.


Dated:  October 25, 2018


2018 2019 % $


General Fund Budget  Proposed Budget Change Change


       REVENUES


Taxes 9,434,687         10,046,362        6.48% 611,675


Intergovernmental Revenues 1,805,630         2,063,980          14.31% 258,350


Licenses and Permits 207,500            221,900             6.94% 14,400


Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 121,000            127,500             5.37% 6,500


Public Charges for Services 1,384,190         1,351,660          -2.35% (32,530)


Intergovernmental charges for services 82,000              82,000               0.00% 0


Miscellaneous Revenue 299,031            393,066             31.45% 94,035


Other Financing Sources 80,000              90,000               0.00% 10,000


       TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 13,414,038       14,376,468        7.17% 962,430


       EXPENDITURES:


General Government 1,658,606         1,815,276          9.45% 156,670


Public Safety 3,502,223         3,690,348          5.37% 188,125


Public Works 2,353,503         2,366,786          0.56% 13,283


Health and Human Services 532,959            557,951             4.69% 24,992


Culture, Recreation and Education 1,026,869         1,058,460          3.08% 31,591


Conservation and Development 218,784            246,217             12.54% 27,433


Other Financing Uses


     Transfer to Debt Service 2,652,786         3,104,117          17.01% 451,331


     Other Uses 1,492,308         1,537,313          3.02% 45,005


       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 13,438,038       14,376,468        6.98% 938,430


FUND BALANCES


Estimated Estimated Property


Estimated Fund Balances Fund Balance Fund Balance Tax


All Governmental Funds 1/1/2019 Revenues Expenditures 12/31/2018 Contribution


General Fund 5,763,235     14,376,468       14,376,468        5,763,235         9,032,362         


TID #3 448,505        518,665            450,229             516,941            -                    


TID #4 1,122,338     194,609            109,800             1,207,147         -                    


TID #5 (485,705)       359,500            442,588             (568,793)           -                    


TID #6 (113,545)       2,525,000         2,577,163          (165,708)           -                    


TID #7 1,288,185     549,959            351,423             1,486,721         -                    


Safety Building 681               62,000              62,000               681                   -                    


Library 18,197          858,808            858,808             18,197              -                    


Library Special 194,273        -                    -                     194,273            -                    


Fire Equipment 20,300          -                    -                     20,300              -                    


Park Development 402,914        -                    -                     402,914            -                    


Storm Sewer 1,585,186     903,349            745,924             1,742,611         -                    


Cemetery 33,351          500                   200                    33,651              -                    


EMS Truck 328,365        41,600              369,965            -                    


EMS Equipment 47,239          29,350              20,000               56,589              -                    


Senior Center Wood Shop 3,702            2,300                2,300                 3,702                -                    


Township Outreach 5,539            5,000                5,260                 5,279                -                    


Seniors in Need 45,749          -                    -                     45,749              -                    


Senior Center Special 444,587        -                    -                     444,587            -                    


Food Pantry 187,555        90,350              75,000               202,905            -                    


Landmarks (226)              9,515                14,000               (4,711)               -                    


Tree Commission 2,096            300                   550                    1,846                -                    


EMS Trust 10,282          6,200                10,650               5,832                -                    


Fire Department Special 35,995          23,300              22,950               36,345              -                    


Fire Pension 802,110        7,600                -                     809,710            -                    


Opera House (190,158)       940,783            907,820             (157,195)           -                    


Tourism 23,824          80,000              80,000               23,824              -                    


Sick Leave 129,577        60,000              -                     189,577            -                    


K9 20,203          9,100                6,125                 23,178              -                    


Economic Development 10,311          31,250              5,200                 36,361              -                    


Redevelopment Authority -               65,400              66,580               (1,180)               -                    


Debt Service 495,082        4,669,817         4,669,817          495,082            -                    


Capital Construction 1,000,000     2,991,439         2,991,439          1,000,000         -                    


Capital Outlay 654,927        1,954,600         1,904,600          704,927            -                    


Building Maintenance 298,430        151,000            281,500             167,930            -                    


Equipment Replacement 378,250        221,000            178,350             420,900            -                    


EMS 773,306        784,650            778,484             779,472            -                    


Water 14,110,978   2,335,524         2,195,998          14,250,504       -                    


Electric 20,207,683   15,994,782       15,344,523        20,857,942       -                    


Sanitary Sewer 16,985,190   2,091,460         2,034,568          17,042,082       -                    


Total 67,088,511   52,945,178       51,570,317        68,463,372       9,032,362         








 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\10-23-2018\09a-Section 78-517 - Barman edits 9-18-18.docx 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Repealing Section 78-913 and Repealing and Recreating Section 78-517 of the Stoughton Municipal 


Code 


Committee Action:    Planning Commission recommends approval 7 - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-24- 2018 First Reading:  


Second Reading:  


October 23, 2018 


November 13, 2018 


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Section 1.  Section 78-913 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is repealed. 


 


Section 2.  Section 78-517 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is repealed and recreated as 


follows: 


 
Sec. 78-517. - Downtown design overlay district.  
 
(1) Purpose. This district is intended to preserve and enhance the aesthetic qualities of the downtown, 


and retain a consistent and visually pleasing image for the downtown area.   


 


(2) Boundaries. This district has the same boundaries as the Main Street Commercial Historic District 


as listed on the National Register of Historic Places, as depicted on the overlay districts zoning 


map.  


 


(3) Definitions.  In this section, the following terms have the following meanings: 


 


(a) “Maintenance” means work involving conserving, preserving, maintaining, or repairing 


the existing exterior appearance of a building or structure (such as repainting, re-


roofing, residing or replacing with the same colors, finishes, and materials). 


 


(b) “Renovation” means work involving a change in the appearance of a building or structure 


(such as architectural component or signage substitution or painting, roofing, siding, with 


different colors, finishes, or materials). 


 


(c) “Structural Project” means work involving modification to the physical configuration of 


an existing building or structure (such as remodeling) or the construction of a new structure 


(such as the erection of a new building or structure, the addition or removal of bulk to an 


existing building or structure, and includes the removal or destruction of any façade of a 


building or structure).  


 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\10-23-2018\09a-Section 78-517 - Barman edits 9-18-18.docx 


(d) “Demolition” means the razing of a building or structure.   
 


(e) “Development Agreement” means an agreement that requires an owner to construct a new 


building or structure that is replacing an existing building or structure in the district, within 


a reasonable time.  For purposes of this section, a reasonable time means a time approved 


by the Common Council after considering the wishes of the applicant and the time required 


to secure financing, demolish the existing building or structure, and construct the new 


building or structure, but in no event more than 36 months following the completion of 


demolition of the existing building or structure.  The Development Agreement shall not 


include a requirement that the agreement obligations be secured by a surety bond, letter of 


credit or other security. 


 


(f) “Cornice or Lintel” means a molded and projecting horizontal member that crowns an 


architectural composition, including on top of a storefront and the bottom of the second 


floor, on top of windows, and on top of the building façade (parapet). 


 


(g) “Horizontal Bands” means horizontal elements such as cornice lines and the repetition of 


second floor window sills and hoods. 


 


(h) “Spandrel” means the low panels of wood, metal or masonry that creates a wall below the 


shop windows. 


 


(i) “Transom Windows” means glazed panelswindows that fill occupy the space above the 


shop window sash,  doors, and shop windows, and below the structural lintel. Transom 


windows may consist of a single sheet of glass or be subdivided into multiple panes of 


clear, colored, stained, prism, or other types of specialty and often rare glass. 


 


(4) Application of Regulations.   


 


(a) Except as expressly provided otherwise in this section, the regulations of this section apply 


to all maintenance, renovation, structural projects and demolition within the district. 


 


(b) This section does not apply to any building or improvement designated as a local landmark 


or located within a historic district established pursuant to Chapter 38 of this Code. 


 


(c) This section does not apply to the demolition of a building or structure that has been ordered 


to be razed by a court of competent jurisdiction pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0413(2).   


 


(d) This section does apply to the demolition of a building or structure ordered razed by the 


building inspector pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0413(1), and neither the owner, the city nor 


any city official may demolish a building pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0413 without first 


obtaining approval pursuant to this section. 


 


(5) Procedural Requirements and Standards for Approval. 


 


(a) Maintenance.  Maintenance shall be subject to approval by the Zoning Administrator.  


The Zoning Administrator shall approve a maintenance application upon verifying that 


the proposed work consists only of maintenance.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\10-23-2018\09a-Section 78-517 - Barman edits 9-18-18.docx 


 


 


(b) Renovation.  Renovation shall be subject to approval by the Plan Commission.  The Plan 


Commission shall approve an application for renovation if the proposed renovation will 


conform to the standards set forth in section 78-517(7).  Applications for approval of 


renovation shall be made to the Zoning Administrator, and shall be accompanied by all of 


the following:  


 


1. The building permit application if such an application is required. 


 


2. A clear depiction of the existing appearance of the property including. Clear clear 


color photographs are recommended for this purpose. Scaled or fully dimensioned 


drawingsand dimensioned drawings of existing components such as windows, doors, 


railings, fencing or other site components, and/or detailed building elevations which 


are proposed for alteration or replacement are recommended and may be required by 


the City;  


 


3. A clear depiction of the proposed appearance of the property including. Paint paint 


charts, promotional brochures, and/or clear color photographs of replacement 


architectural components are recommended for this purpose. Scaled or fully 


dimensioned drawings and dimensioned drawings of proposed components such as 


windows, doors, railings, fencing or other site components, and/or detailed building 


elevations which are proposed for alteration or replacement are recommended and 


may be required by the City;   


 


4. A clear written description of the proposed modification, including a complete 


listing of proposed components, materials, and colors.  


 


5. A clear wWritten explanation regarding how the proposed alteration will conform to 


section 78-517 (7) with direct reference to each applicable design standard.  


 


(c) Structural Projects.  Structural Project applications shall be subject to approval by the Plan 


Commission.  Before acting on an application for a Structural Project, the Plan Commission 


shall conduct a public hearing on the application, which shall be preceded by publication 


of a Class 2 Notice.  The Plan Commission shall approve an application for a Structural 


Project if the applicant demonstrates that the proposed Structural Project will conform to 


the standards set forth in section 78-517(7).  Applications for approval of Structural 


Projects shall be made to the Zoning Administrator, and shall be accompanied by all of the 


following:   


 


1. A building permit application.  


 


2. A clear depiction of the existing appearance of the property including. Clear clear 


color photographs are recommended for this purpose. Scaled or fully dimensioned 


drawingsand dimensioned drawings of existing components such as windows, doors, 


railings, fencing or other site components, and/or detailed building elevations which 


are proposed for alteration or replacement are recommended and may be required by 


the City.   







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\10-23-2018\09a-Section 78-517 - Barman edits 9-18-18.docx 


 


3. A clear depiction of the proposed appearance of the property including. Paint paint 


charts, promotional brochures, and/or clear color photographs of replacement 


architectural components are recommended for this purpose. Scaled or fully 


dimensioned drawingsand dimensioned drawings of proposed components such as 


windows, doors, railings, fencing or other site components, and/or detailed building 


elevations which are proposed for alteration or replacement are recommended and 


may be required by the City.  


 


4. For all projects involving a new building, or an addition to an existing building, a 


detailed site plan which provides the following information:  


 


a. A title block indicating name and address of the current property owner, 


developer and project consultants;  


 


b. The date of the original plan and the latest date of revision to the plan;  


 


c. A north arrow and a graphic scale. Said scale shall not be smaller than one inch 


equals 100 feet;   


 


d. All property lines and existing and proposed right-of-way lines with bearings 


and dimensions clearly labeled;  


 


e. All existing and proposed easement lines and dimensions with a key provided 


and explained on the margins of the plan as to ownership and purpose;   


 


f. All existing and proposed buildings, structures, and paved areas, including 


walks, drives, decks, patios, fences, utility poles, drainage facilities, and walls;  


 


g. All required building setback lines;  


 


h. A legal description of the subject property;  


 


i. The location, type and size of all signage on the site;  


 


j. The location, type and orientation of all exterior lighting on the subject 


property;  


 


k. The location of all access points, parking and loading areas on the subject 


property, including a summary of the number of parking stalls and labels 


indicating the dimension of such areas;  


 


l. The location of all outdoor storage areas;  


 


m. The location and type of any permanently protected green space areas;  


 


 







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\10-23-2018\09a-Section 78-517 - Barman edits 9-18-18.docx 


 


5. A detailed landscaping plan of the subject property that meets the requirements of 


Table 78-604 and takes into account both the walking and driving experience. 


 


6. A clear written description of the proposed project, including a complete listing of 


proposed components, materials, and colors. 


  


7. A clear wWritten explanation regarding how the proposed alteration will conform to 


section 78-517 (7) with direct reference to each applicable design standard. 


 


(6) Demolition.   


 


(a) Demolition is subject to approval by the Common Council.  The Common Council shall 


hold a public hearing on a demolition application before acting on the application.   


  


(b) Demolition shall not be approved unless the applicant demonstrates any of the following: 


 


1. (i) a permit for construction of a new building or structure on the site has been 


approved and issued, and (ii) the owner has entered into a Development Agreement 


with the City; or 


 


2. The building or structure, through no fault of the current or prior owner, is 


detrimental to, or does not contribute to, the architectural or aesthetic character of 


the district.  Where a building or structure has been allowed to deteriorate in a 


manner that failed to comply with City property maintenance ordinances, such 


deterioration is the fault of the owner. 


 


3. A denial of the permit will result in a taking of the of the owner’s property without 


just compensation in violation of the Constitution of the State of Wisconsin or the 


Constitution of the United States of America. 


 


(7) Design standards.  Renovation and Structural Projects shall conform to the design standards in 


this Section that the plan commission determines are applicable to the application.   


 


(a) Building Setback.  It is important wWhere a uniform setback exists, that any construction 


structural project or alterations renovation shall maintain the alignment of facades along 


the sidewalk edge to maintain the quality of the streetwall. This also pertains to parking 


lots and unbuilt areas; the edge of the sidewalk shall be emphasized with some visible 


barrier such as a decorative wall or plantings so that the setback is recognized. In 


blocksWithin a block-face where setbacks are not uniform, the function and design of 


neighboring buildings shall be taken into account when determining setbacks. 


Additionally, other restrictions outlined in the zoning ordinance must be given 


consideration.  


 


(b) Building Height. Study the particular block-face within which construction structural 


projects or alterations renovations are contemplated: if buildings are basically the same 


height, maintain the alignment of building cornices or rooflines to maintain the quality of 


the streetwall.  If height varies occasionally, the height of new constructionstructural 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\10-23-2018\09a-Section 78-517 - Barman edits 9-18-18.docx 


projects shall fall within a range of 10% of the mean building height found in the 


blockwithin the block-face. In areas where there is more variation in building type and 


height, the height of construction structural projects shall be within the range of heights 


found on the immediate blockwithin the block-face.  Corner buildings present special 


characteristics as they are often larger or more imposing than buildings in the center of 


blocksa block-face.  For construction structural projects or alterations renovations on 


corners, building height shall be at least as tall as the next tallest building on the block-face 


and be similar to that of the tallest buildings on the adjoining corners. See Figure 1. 


 


(c) Building Width.  The regular, 20-25- foot interval in the Main Street commercial district 


creates a strong visual rhythm as one walks or drives down Main Street.  It is important 


that this rhythm be retained in these densely-built areas; construction structural projects 


shall respect the width of existing buildings by designing a rhythmic division of the facade 


to repeat this existing rhythm. Construction Structural projects and alterations renovations 


must take into consideration its context within the block-face and maintain the continuity 


of the block-face. Construction Structural projects within a block-face that is made up of a 


continuous wall of building fronts (such as that shown in Figure 1) shall maintain the 


existing building wall by filling the lot from side lot line to side lot line.  


 


(d) Horizontal Bands. Wherever possible, existing horizontal bands (such as storefront cornice 


or lintel and transom windows) shall be retained and preserveduncovered; owners shall 


move or remove large signs that may cover the banding to allow the horizontal elements to 


be expressed. When horizontal rhythms are found, horizontal elements that also exist in 


buildings to either side of the subject building shall be retained. Existing transom windows 


shall not be filled with brick, wood or other materials. If original building design called for 


transom windows that are now missing, they shall be visually recreated. If the storefront 







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\10-23-2018\09a-Section 78-517 - Barman edits 9-18-18.docx 


 


cornice or lintel is missing, a horizontal division shall be achieved by replacing or 


simulating the cornice and/or incorporating it in the sign board. 
 


(e) Building Proportion.  On a block-by-block basis, the proportions of all buildings shall 


reflect the building proportions characteristic to that block-face.  
 


(f) Vertical Rhythms. Wherever possible, the floor heights on main facades shall appear 


visually in proportion to those of adjoining buildings. The rhythm of the ground floor shall 


harmonize with the rhythm of upper floors. The vertical pattern of exterior building 


elements formed by patterns of building openings for windows and doors, and related 


elements such as sills, headers, transoms, cornices and sign bands shall be compatible in 


design and elevation with those of existing buildings in the immediate area. Front and 


secondary doorways/entries, porches and steps present at the time the building was 


originally constructed shall be retained; except as required to meet accessibility standards. 


Non-commercial style doors such as solid doors, half-glazed doors, “colonial style” doors, 


and highly decorative doors are not permitted in commercial applications. Storm doors are 


prohibited because they make access difficult. 
 


Window features, including lintels, sills, architraves, shutters, cornice/pediments, hoods 


and hardware, shall be maintained where possible, or replaced with visually matching 


features and materials. Replicating missing window features (such as hoods) in sheet metal, 


fiberglass, or wood shall be permitted. If window features cannot be replaced or replicated, 


at least the shape of the window opening shall be retained and expressed. Frames for new 


windows shall be divided to match original window divisions or shall be based on divisions 


typical to that building type. Within block-faces where windows are consistently 


proportioned, structural projects shall maintain this proportion and spacing of windows. 
 


(g) Rhythm Rhythm/Relationship of Solids and Voids.  The majority of the front wall surface 


of the first floor shall be window area. Large storefront windows shall be maintained; do 


not block up the storefront to install smaller windows.  Storefront spandrels shall be as low 


as possible; do not make the spandrel higher than originally designed and as a result infill 


the window opening. Spandrel design shall relate to the architectural style of the building; 


a brick spandrel shall match the masonry of the building and a wood spandrel shall include 


stiles and rails at the top, bottom and sides. Existing columns shall be left intact and 


included in the overall design of framing for the shopfront. 
 


Maintain the rhythm of solids and voids in upper stories; the surface of the upper floors 


shall bear a repeated solid-void relationship, with windows spaced evenly in the wall. do 


Do not change the size of windows or cover over the upper facade. Windows, including 


transom windows, shall not be painted or filled with brick, wood or other materials. Where 


old sash will be replaced with new sash, replacement shall be made with sash of the same 


size and appearance rather than blocking part of the window opening and therefore 


changing its proportion. 


 
 


(f)(h) Roof Forms. It is very important that cCornices and parapets shall be preserved with an 


ongoing program of maintenancemaintained. If cornice and/or parapet is missing or 


damaged, it shall be recreated or repaired in matching wood, metal or brick, or in alternate 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\10-23-2018\09a-Section 78-517 - Barman edits 9-18-18.docx 


visually matching materials like fiberglass. When necessary, cornices shall be replaced 


with identical forms. Residential-type gabled roofs shall be avoidedare prohibited in favor 


of a sloped roof hidden from view on the front facade by a parapet; decoration . Decoration 


of the roofline by use of special materials or decorative details shall use examples of other 


buildings on Main Streetin the district as a guide.  Mansards or other exotic roof shapes 


shall not be usedare prohibited; . Throughout the district, rroof shapes not characteristic of 


adjacent buildings in the district shall not be usedare prohibited.  
 


The originalFor renovations, roof shape and character of visible materials shall be 


retained if in keeping with the building’s original design including . Original architectural 


features which give the roof its essential character, including such as dormer windows, 


cupolas, cornices, brackets, chimneys and weathervanes, shall be preserved if in keeping 


with buildings in the immediate area as determined by the plan commission.  


(g)(i) Exterior Materials. In any renovation work, preserving the downtown quality and character 


shall be given the highest priority. Therefore, to protect the distinctive quality and character 


of an existing building, any new materials used shall match as closely as possible either the 


original existing materials or the materials used at the time the building was originally 


constructed.  When the cost or availability of materials that match original materials make 


their use prohibitive, and when alternate materials can visually match original materials, 


the use of alternate materials shall be allowedpermitted.  The uniform identity created by 


the repeated use of masonry as the primary building material is very important to retain. 


As a rule,  Therefore, it is strongly recommended that new buildings shall be constructed 


with street-facing facades of brick or stone. If the majority of street-facing facades within 


the block-face are constructed with siding (see below), then siding shall be permitted. On 


a site-specific basis, the trim materials of existing buildings to either side of the building 


being designed shall be reflected in the design.  However, some materials, such as mirrored 


glass, rough-sawn shakes or diagonal wood siding, may be inappropriate to use on some 


buildings. Inappropriate materials shall be avoided.  In any renovation project, the quality 


of finish materials varies widely. The highest quality facing materials shall be used.  In 


addition:  


 


1. Masonry. Stone or brick facing shall be of even coloration and consistent size. 


Cinder block, concrete block, concrete slab, or concrete panel shall not be permitted 


on street-facing facades. 


2. Siding. Wood or thin board textured vinyl or textured metal clapboard siding may 


be appropriate, particularly if the proposed non-masonry exterior was originally 


used on the building.  In certain instances, clapboard,  or board and batten may be 


in keeping with the general design theme. Asphalt shingle siding, rough-sawn 


shake siding or diagonal wood sidings shall not be permitted. 


2.3. EIFS. Exterior Insulation and Finish Systems (EIFS) such as Dryvit shall not be 


permitted. Stucco shall not be permitted for structural projects and shall only be 


permitted for renovations if used at the time the building was originally 


constructed. 


3.4. Glazing (glass). Clear, or slightly tinted glass or related glazing material shall be 


used.  Mirrored glass, smoked glass, or heavily tinted glass shall not be permitted.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\10-23-2018\09a-Section 78-517 - Barman edits 9-18-18.docx 


 


(h)(j) Exterior Surfaces. Appurtenances (accessories): Exterior surface appurtenances shall be 


compatible with those of existing buildings in the immediate area. In addition:  


 


1. The tTraditional storefront design theme (characterized by strong horizontal and 


vertical rhythms formed by building openings, storefront columns, storefront 


cornices, upper cornices, kickplates, signbands, large display windows, and 


transom windows) shall be employed for all buildings.  


2. Throughout the district, avoid cluttering building street-facing facades with 


unnecessary signs, brackets, wiring, meter boxes, antennae, gutters, downspouts 


and other appurtenances is prohibited. Unnecessary signs shall also be avoided. 


Where necessary, such features shall be colored so as to blend in, rather than 


contrast, with the immediately adjacent building exterior.  Extraneous 


ornamentation which is inconsistent with buildings within the immediate area is 


also prohibited.  


(i)(k) Awnings.  Awnings shall fit within the storefront space: , shall not cover the side piers, or 


be installed above the lintel of the storefront and shall be made of durable weather-resistant 


canvas or vinyl fabric.  The color of awnings shall complement facade colors; solid colors 


or stripes are appropriateshall be permitted.  Awnings shall project no more than 4 to 7 feet 


from the front wall.  Avoid aAwnings with a curved profile and backlit awnings are 


prohibited, as these are not historically appropriate.  Lighting of awnings from behind is 


not acceptable because this detracts from the overall character of the facade. Permanent 


sloped canopies of aluminum, shakes or shingles are not appropriateshall not be permitted 


unless they can be documented in old photographs.  Awnings shall be a minimum of 9 feet 


from grade.  


 


(j)(l) Exterior Colors.  Colors shall relate in a positive way to the existing materials found on 


the façade (especially the masonry), and to existing elements, such as signs or awnings. 


Clean the exterior surfaces with the gentlest means possible, such as light washing with 


light pressure (sandblasting destroys the brick by prematurely weathering and eroding its 


surface). When the surface to be painted has a quantity of three-dimensional detail, use 


light or mid-range color values, rather than extremely dark colors, so the details are not 


hidden. When in doubt on an appropriate palette, use shades of one color with one highlight 


color.  When choosing colors, take into account the position of the building in relation to 


sunlight.  Exterior colors for structures and appurtenances including fixtures and signs shall 


be compatible and harmonious with those of existing buildings in the immediate area. 


Specifically, throughout the district:  
 


1. High gloss paints, lacquers, varnishes or other "shiny" non-glazing surfaces shall 


not be used.  


2. Façade cColor combination schemes shall be limited to no more than three different 


colors for all theeach structures and appurtenances on a property. (Varying shades, 


tints or intensities of a color shall count as a different color for this purpose.)  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\10-23-2018\09a-Section 78-517 - Barman edits 9-18-18.docx 


3. Façade cColor schemes shall be used consistently throughout the property, 


including on both the upper and lower portions of buildings, and on all facades of 


a building or structure.  


(k)(m) Exterior Lighting.  Throughout the district, on-site exterior lighting shall be compatible 


and harmonious with existing lighting in the immediate area. Specifically:  


 


1. Pedestrian lighting:  The design, color, height, location and light quality of on-site 


pedestrian lighting shall be consistent with existing pedestrian lighting fixtures. 


2. Additional lighting standards are found in section 78-707.  


(l)(n) Signage.  Signs shall be placed at the top of the storefront; painted on the window itself; 


hanging over the sidewalk; or on the edge of an awning.   


 


1. Coordinate the placement of signage with adjacent storefronts to avoid visual 


confusion.  Avoid lLarge hanging plastic signs and oversized signs are prohibited.   


2. Any sSignage placed over features on the second story facade are not 


appropriateprohibited.  


3. Select clear, simple lettering styles for easy readability.  


4. Consider the color of the building and of neighboring buildings when determining 


sign color.   


5. Select sign colors that provide contrast between letters and background: a dark 


background with lighter colored letters is most easily perceived by the human eye.   


6. Where possible, signs shall reflect an individual business message rather than 


advertise a nationally-franchised product.   


7. There are additional signage requirements in Article VIII.  


(m) Storefront Cornice or Lintel.  If the storefront lintel contains a cornice, every effort should 


be made to preserve it through repairs and repainting.  


 


(n) Transoms.  Remove materials which cover the transom and repair transom glazing and 


frames.  When the transom is damaged or destroyed, replace with a similar frame and 


pattern in the same material or an unobtrusive new material.  Do not cover the transom.  


Do not infill the transom space with brick, wood or other materials.  Do not paint the glazed 


portions of the transom.  Do not over decorate transom with inappropriate patterns, colored 


glass or designs.  Do not infill the transom with brick or wood, or cover it over with signs.  
 


(o) Storefront Spandrels.  Should be as low as possible; their design should relate to the 


architectural style of the building.  When the original spandrel exists and is in good 


condition, it should be repaired, repainted and insulated from the interior.  If the original 


spandrel is in poor condition or is missing, it can be replaced with wood, tile, or metal over 


masonry. A wood spandrel design should include stiles and rails at the top, bottom and 


sides; a brick spandrel should match the masonry of the building. 


Do not make the spandrel higher than it was originally designed to be and as a result infill 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTVIIPEST_S78-707EXLIST





 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\10-23-2018\09a-Section 78-517 - Barman edits 9-18-18.docx 


 


the window opening.  Do not use modern materials which are continuous, smooth and 


shiny.  


(p)  


(q) Cornices and Pediments.  Preserve, through ongoing maintenance, original cornices and 


pediments.  If cornice and/or pediment is missing, replace in wood, metal or brick, or in 


compatible modern materials like fiberglass, using historic photographs as a guide.  Repair 


and replace damaged or missing dentils and brackets when necessary.  


(r)  


(s) Windows.  The size, proportion and rhythm of original windows shall not be altered. 


Original window openings shall not be blocked, except with a dark opaque panel placed 


behind the window to preserve the appearance of the opening. Where now blocked in 


another manner, blocked windows shall be restored using said method. Window features, 


including lintels, sills, architraves, shutters, pediments, hoods and hardware, shall be 


preserved where possible, or replaced with identical features and materials. Dark frames 


(i.e. anodized bronze) shall be used to replace storefront and upper story windows. Clear 


aluminum finishes and mill finish aluminum storm windows are prohibited. Real shutters 


and awnings shall be used if there is evidence that they were a component of the original 


building design. Vinyl and plastic shutters and awnings shall be prohibited.  In blocks 


where windows are consistently proportioned, remodeling should maintain this proportion 


and spacing of windows. Where old sash will be replaced with new sash, replacement shall 


be made with sash of the same size and appearance rather than blocking part of the window 


opening and therefore changing its proportion.  Retain original window sash whenever 


possible. Preserve through an ongoing program of maintenance and repair.  If new sash 


must be installed, choose the style, size and material that will match the original. Many 


window companies offer custom-built windows that can accurately replicate original 


windows; some of these include double-glazing and other energy-efficient features.  Do 


not infill window openings and install smaller windows.  Do not enlarge window openings 


to install “picture” windows. 


(t) Display windows should be restored to their original appearance. 


(u) Where original glazing and window frames exist and are in good condition, they should be 


retained; frames should be caulked and painted.  When the frames are missing or 


deteriorated, replace with simple metal frames which can be painted and easily maintained.  


To improve energy efficiency, install interior glazing rather than replacing windows. 


Replacing the original glazing with insulated glazing for energy conservation may involve 


installation of new frames that may alter the appearance of the storefront.  If it is necessary 


to install new insulated windows, the new frames should be unobtrusive in profile and 


should be painted to harmonize with the architectural features of the building.  Frames for 


new windows shall be divided to match original window divisions, or shall be based on 


divisions typical to that building type. 


(v) Doors.  Front or secondary doors shall be retained.  If the doors will be replaced, install 


doors which have large glass panels and interesting hardware appropriate to the style of the 


storefront. Options include salvaged doors, new wood doors to match the original, or new 


aluminum doors. Paint new aluminum doors or use an anodized finish to blend with the 


existing architectural features of the storefront. Insulated glazing with an appropriate seal 


system is recommended for protection from heat gain or loss.  Avoid solid doors, half-


glazed doors, “colonial style” doors, and highly decorative doors that are not compatible 


with the historic integrity of the building. Avoid mirrored glass and deeply tinted glass. 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\10-23-2018\09a-Section 78-517 - Barman edits 9-18-18.docx 


Tinted glass with a shading coefficient of less than 0.5 can be acceptable and offers some 


protection from heat gain.  Avoid storm doors because they make access difficult. If they 


are needed, they should either be authentic reproductions consistent with the style of the 


building, or clean-lined and unobtrusive.   For security measures, consider simple metal 


grilles or acrylic or lexan sheet glazing; such glazing can also be installed over existing 


doors to add energy efficiency to the project.  


 


(w) Window Hoods.  Repair existing window hoods.  Replace any missing parts in the same 


material as the original. Old photographs are excellent sources for finding the missing 


elements.  When missing, the window hoods can be replicated in sheet metal, fiberglass, 


or wood.  If the hood cannot be replaced, at least the shape of the window opening should 


be retained and expressed in brickwork. There are excellent examples of masonry detailing 


in Stoughton which can be used as precedents when window hoods are missing.  
 


(x) Shop Fronts.  Shop fronts should fit inside the original shop front in terms of all three 


dimensions (vertical, horizontal and front to back articulation).  
 


(y) Entrances and Porches.  Original porches and steps shall be retained, except as required to 


meet accessibility standards. Porches, steps and related enclosures which do not comply 


with the architectural design theme, as determined by the plan commission, shall be 


removed. If the entry has been changed, consult historic photographs to determine what it 


looked like and design a compatible new entry. Existing columns should be left intact and 


included in the overall design of framing for the shopfront. 


If columns are missing, replacement columns should replicate the originals as revealed in 


historic photographs.  If columns are missing and replication is not possible, simple 


cylindrical columns can be installed as replacements without detracting from other 


architectural features. 


Section 3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication.   


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


 


 


   


 


 


 







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\10-23-2018\09a-Section 78-517 - Barman edits 9-18-18.docx 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\Section 78-517 - Barman edits 9-18-18.docx 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2018\10-8-18\Planning Info\Zoning Ordinance 78-517 Amendment Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: October 1, 2018


To: Plan Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda item for the October 8, 2018 Plan Commission meeting and October
23/November13, 2018 Common Council meetings for proposed ordinance
amendments to zoning code sections 78-517 and 78-913 - Downtown Design
Overlay Zoning District (DDOZD)


The proposed ordinance amendments are to eliminate section 78-913 and recreate section 78-517. A public
hearing is scheduled for the Plan Commission meeting of October 8, 2018 and a recommendation to the
Common Council is necessary. The amendments were requested by the Common Council and have been
reviewed and modified by the Landmarks Commission, Plan Commission, Attorney Matt Dregne and City
staff.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
10/8/18
Page 3 of 4


Attorney Michael Rumpf was available for questions.


Barman questioned the letter from the Town of Dunkirk. Scheel stated development will need to
be consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and adhere to City ordinances such as a zoning
bufferyards, lighting, setbacks, etc. Residents on Velkommen Way will still need to be provided
access to their properties and will be considered as part of development concepts.


Bartlett questioned the strip of land owned by the City of Stoughton. Scheel gave a history of the
strip of land from when Walmart had plans to develop to the north of this land on the Linnerud
lands.


Motion by Bartlett to recommend the Common Council approve the annexation ordinance as
presented, 2nd by Jenson. Motion carried 6 – 1 (Caravello voted no)


11. Proposed zoning ordinance amendment to sections 78-517 and 78-913 related to the
Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District.
Mayor Swadley introduced the proposed ordinance amendments.


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.


Mayor Swadley thanked Commissioner Barman, City Attorney Dregne and City staff for all the
work on the ordinance revisions.


Jenson stated he read the ordinance and is pleased with the outcome.


Attorney Dregne gave a review of the final ordinance draft.


Scheel stated the non-redlined copy is the one being acted on tonight.


Jenson questioned the moratorium which is still active for the blacksmith shop. Mayor Swadley
stated he could bring that up at Council.


Motion by Jenson to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance as presented, 2nd by
Bartlett.


Barman questioned whether the ordinance will meet the intent of the Comprehensive Plan. City
staff are confident that it does.


Bartlett questioned a requirement to make sure horizontal bands are not painted. Barman found a
section of the ordinance that restricts painting of horizontal bands.


Motion carried 7 – 0.



mstacey

Highlight

Proposed zoning ordinance amendment to sections 78-517 and 78-913 related to the
Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District.
Mayor Swadley introduced the proposed ordinance amendments.
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.
No one registered to speak.
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.
Mayor Swadley thanked Commissioner Barman, City Attorney Dregne and City staff for all the
work on the ordinance revisions.
Jenson stated he read the ordinance and is pleased with the outcome.
Attorney Dregne gave a review of the final ordinance draft.
Scheel stated the non-redlined copy is the one being acted on tonight.
Jenson questioned the moratorium which is still active for the blacksmith shop. Mayor Swadley
stated he could bring that up at Council.
Motion by Jenson to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance as presented, 2nd by
Bartlett.
Barman questioned whether the ordinance will meet the intent of the Comprehensive Plan. City
staff are confident that it does.
Bartlett questioned a requirement to make sure horizontal bands are not painted. Barman found a
section of the ordinance that restricts painting of horizontal bands.
Motion carried 7 – 0.






		09a-Section 78-517 - Barman edits 9-18-18.pdf

		09b-Proposed Ordinance Amend 78-517 and 78-913.pdf






 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE TO 


THE  


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2019 budget 


and five-year (2019-2023) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee: 


     Budget:  Approved 7-0 


     CIP:  Approved 7-0 


 


Finance Committee: 


     Budget:  Approved 4-0 


     CIP:  Approved 4-0 


 


 


 
Fiscal Impact: Revenue Neutral 


 
File Number: 


 
R-183-2018 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 13, 2018 


 
WHEREAS, in early 2018, Stoughton Utilities staff and consultants initiated the development of the 


proposed 2019 Stoughton Utilities Budget and five-year Capital Improvement Program, and 


 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee approved and recommended the approval of the proposed 


2019 Stoughton Utilities Budget and five-year Capital Improvement Plan to the Common Council on 


September 17, 2018, and 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Finance Committee approved and recommended the approval of the 


proposed 2019 Stoughton Utilities Budget and five-year Capital Improvements Plan to the Common 


Council on October 9, 2018, now therefore  


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) 


approve and adopt the 2019 Stoughton Utilities Budget and five-year Capital Improvement Plan. 


    


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


          


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     







600 South Fourth Street
P.O. Box 383


Stoughton, WI 53589-0383


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886


Date: September 11, 2018


To: Stoughton Utilities Committee


From: Jamin Friedl, CPA
City of Stoughton Director of Finance / Comptroller


Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.
Stoughton Utilities Director


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Proposed 2019 Budget And Five Year (2019 2023) Capital
Improvement Projects (CIP) Plan.


We have completed efforts utilizing system plans, projections and engineering studies, and 2018 financial
forecasts to develop our Proposed 2019 Budget and Five-Year CIP Plan. The following items are meant
to illustrate changes in the financial summary from prior periods:


At this point in time, we incorporated a 3% market adjustment to the existing pay structure.


The following inflationary amounts were used where appropriate:


Electric O&M 1.50%


Electric PILOT 1.00%


Water O&M 2.50%


Water PILOT 1.00%


Wastewater O&M 1.50%


The proposed 2019 budget reflects a proposed 2% increase in electric rates


The adjustment will result in an increase of $2.26 to the average electric residential
monthly bill using 1,000 kWh per month.


The Water Utility is anticipating a borrowing of $815,000 in 2019.


Our Stoughton Utilities Proposed 2019 Budget and Five-Year CIP is provided for approval and
recommendation to the City of Stoughton Common Council. It will be presented at an October 2018
Common Council workshop and is scheduled for Common Council adoption in November 2018, with
dates to be determined.







FOR THE FISCAL YEAR


JANUARY 1, 2019 THROUGH


DECEMBER 31, 2019


Jamin Friedl, CPA


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Proposed Annual Budget for the Year


2019



















































































City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2019 budget
and five year (2019-2023) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).


Committee Action: Utilities Committee recommended Committee of the Whole and Common
Council approval 7-0


Finance Committee recommended Common Council approval _-0


Fiscal Impact: Revenue Neutral


File Number: R-xxx-2018 Date Introduced: November 13, 2018


WHEREAS, in early 2018, Stoughton Utilities staff and consultants initiated the development of the
proposed 2019 Stoughton Utilities Budget and five year (2019-2023) Capital Improvement Program, and


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee approved and recommended the approval of the proposed
2019 Stoughton Utilities Budget and five year (2019-2023) Capital Improvement Plan to the Common
Council on September 17, 2018, and


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Finance Committee approved and recommended the approval of the proposed
2019 Stoughton Utilities Budget and five year (2019-2023) Capital Improvements Plan to the Common
Council on October 9, 2018, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s)
approve and adopt the 2019 Stoughton Utilities Budget and five year (2019-2023) Capital Improvement
Plan.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote:


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Mayor Tim Swadley Date


Council Action: Override Vote:





		07a-R-183-2018 -Utilities Budget & CIP Resolution.pdf

		07b-Utilities - Budget CIP.pdf






 


 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to adopt the 2019 City of Stoughton Budget  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Committee of the Whole recommends approval 10-0 


 
Fiscal Impact: $ 13,922,468 Operating    
 
File Number:  R-184-2018 


 
Date Introduced: 


 


 
November 13, 2018 


 


RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2019 ANNUAL CITY BUDGET 


WHEREAS, the Mayor has prepared and the Council Committee of the Whole has reviewed the 


proposed budgets of the City of Stoughton for the year 2019; and 


WHEREAS, a Summary of the Budget and Notice of Public Hearing was published on 


October 25, 2018; and 


WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the budget on the 13th day of November, 2018 


by the Common Council; and 


WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2019 


City of Stoughton Operating Budget to the Common Council on November 1, 2018; and 


 


 WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2019 


Stoughton Emergency Medical Services (EMS) budget to the Common Council on October 18, 2018; and 


 


 WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2019 


Stoughton Storm Water Utility budget to the Common Council on October 25, 2018; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2019 


Library budget to the Common Council on November 1, 2018; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2019 Opera 


House budget to the Common Council on October 25, 2018; and 


 


WHEREAS, an amendment was made to shift $59,540 in Redevelopment Authority expenses to 


Tax Incremental District No. 8 to more accurately reflect the nature of those costs; and  


 


WHEREAS, an amendment was made to increase the Tax Incremental District No. 8 budget by 


$4,400 to reflect anticipated fencing and storm water costs; and 


 


WHEREAS, an amendment was made to increase the Tax Incremental District No. 8 grant revenue 


by $33,750 to reflect remaining amounts to be reimbursed to the District in 2019; and 


 







 


WHEREAS, an amendment was made to decrease General Fund labor costs by $1,374 to reflect 


edits made to the compensation plan for one employee; and 


WHEREAS, the Common Council has examined the budget and various items therein and finds 


the budget as presented and amended to date of this Resolution to represent the income anticipated 


and the expenditures for the various departments by major category as set forth therein;  


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane 


County, Wisconsin does approve the following: 


SECTION 1. 2019 Budget Adopted. 


There is hereby adopted the 2019 City of Stoughton budget and appropriated out of the 


receipts of the City of Stoughton for the year 2019, including monies received from the general 


property tax levy, special assessments and other sources of revenue as therein provided, for the 


various purposes therein specified, the amounts set forth in said Budget presented, or attached 


thereto or referenced by it. 


SECTION 2. Tax Levy Adopted. 


There is hereby certified to the City Clerk, a general property tax levy in the amount of 


$9,032,362 on all of the taxable property within the City of Stoughton for the year 2018 for the uses 


and purposes set forth as expenditures in the Budget hereby adopted. 


SECTION 3. City Clerk Directed to Spread Tax on Roll. 


The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to spread the tax levied herein on the tax roll 


of the City of Stoughton for the year 2018. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is directed to publish this resolution as a 


Class 1 Notice in the Stoughton Courier Hub. 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Timothy Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Published: 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     







City of Stoughton


2019 Budget







Driving Factors


• Compensation Plan adjusted 3.00%


• Health Insurance increase over 2018 of 5.95% including the 
addition of 4 tiers


• Debt Service increase $451,331 - $309,595 in 2018


• Net New Construction of 1.59%


• State Road Allotment increased by $160,500


• Water and Electric PILOT increased by $95,000







Historical Perspective







Changes to Revenue







Changes to Wages







Changes to Benefits







The Bottom Line:


• 201 tax levy has 1.59% Net 
New Construction = 
$113,412


• Levy increase includes an 
estimated City Tax rate 
decrease of .83%


• Mill Rate decrease of 
$0.07


• Total Tax change –
reduction of 
$7.00/$100,000 value.


Levy Limit $7,224,151 


Add Additional Levy for 2019 


Debt Service 1,808,211 


Total Levy $9,032,362 


Equalized Value $1,163,261,500


Assessment Ratio 97.2060276%


Assessed Value $1,130,807,600


Bottom Line


2017 Levy $8,507,687 


Proposed 2018 Levy $9,032,362 


$ Change from 2017 $524,675 


% Change from 2017 6.17%


2018 City Tax Rate $8.43


Proposed 2019 City Tax Rate $8.36


$ Change from 2018 $(.07)


% Change from 2018 (.83)%


City taxes paid/ $100,000 of 


Value $836 


Decrease in amount 


paid/$100,000 over 2018 $(7.00)







Tax Rate History


RATE $$ DIFF % CHANGE


2009 Home 
Value = 100,000 7.28= City Taxes $727.62


2010 Home 
Value = 100,000 7.49= City Taxes $749.00 $21.38 2.94%


2011 Home 
Value = 100,000 7.87= City Taxes $787.09 $38.09 5.09%


2012 Home 
Value 100,000 8.08= City Taxes $808.00 $20.91 2.66%


2013 Home 
Value 100,000 8.33= City Taxes $833.00 $25.00 3.09%
2014 Home 
Value 100,000 8.55= City Taxes $855.00 $23.00 2.79%


2015 Home 
Value 100,000 8.63= City Taxes $863.00 $8.00 0.90%


2016 Home 


Value 100,000 8.46=City Taxes $846.00 $(17.00) (1.93)%


2017 Home 


Value 100,000 8.43=City Taxes $843.00 $(3.00) (0.35)%


2018 Home 


Value 100,000 8.36=City Taxes $836.00 $(7.00) (0.83)%







Department Requests


• Fire


• Increase Fire Tech/Records Specialist from 30 to 40 hours -
$14,500 est. impact and not currently budgeted


• 12 Full Time Fire Fighters - $816,500 est. impact and not currently 
budgeted


• Public Works


• One seasonal employee - $6,300 est. impact - This position is 
already on staff for 2018 and has been budgeted for 2019


• Library


• 100 additional sub hours - $1,300 est. impact and has been 
budgeted for 2019


• 208 additional hours for the Youth Services Coordinator - $4,500 
est. impact and has been budgeted for 2019


• These costs were offset by a reduction in shelver hours







Department Requests (cont.)


• Police


• One additional Patrol Officer - $82,500 est. impact and not 
currently budgeted


• One PT Records Clerk/Dispatcher/Circuit Court Coordinator -
$22,000 est. impact and not currently budgeted


• Increase Community Service Officer from 599 hours to 1,039 -
$9,500 est. impact and has been budgeted for 2019


• Detective Promotion - $3,200 est. impact and has been budgeted 
for 2019


• Recreation


• Administrative Assistant - $16,100 est. impact and not currently 
budgeted


• Increase Seasonal Admin position from 599 hours to 1,039 -
$8,500 est. impact and not currently budgeted







Department Requests (cont.)


• Senior Center


• Partial Funding of the Program Volunteer Coordinator – Grant 
monies of $45,400 are promised for 2019 with the remaining 
$9,200 being funded by the City and this amount has been 
budgeted for 2019


• Planning


• Code Enforcement position - $53,000 (assuming full benefits) –
est. cost and not currently budgeted







Fund Transfers and Advances


•Revenue Earmarked for Other Funds
• Opera House - $165,000 - $6,231 from 2018
• PS Building - $62,000 - $10,000 from 2018
• Library - $593,813 - $22,236 from 2018
• Landmarks - $9,500 - $4,500 from 2018
• TIF 8 - $58,000    - $58,000 from 2018
• RDA - $7,000 - $3,000 from 2018







Items to Consider (cont.)


•Current Advances from General Fund
• TIF 5 Advance - $598,427
• TIF 5 Transfer - $177,893


• No increment expected for 2019 – City will need to cash flow TIF 
5’s debt service of $130,588 


• Excess funding currently available in the Debt Service Fund to 
cover 2019 debt service


• TIF 5/8 restructure may alleviate some of this pressure in 2020


• Will discuss TIF 7 increment sharing in 2019







Items to Consider (cont.)


•Current Advances from General Fund (cont.)
• TIF 6 Advance - $138,670


• Not enough increment expected for 2019 – City will need to cash 
flow approximately $30,000 of TIF 6’s debt service


• Excess funding currently available in the Debt Service Fund to 
cover 2019 debt service







Items to Consider (cont.)


•Current Advances from General Fund (cont.)
• RDA Advance - $81,370
• EMS Advance - $414,645 – This balance is adjusted at 


year end based on EMS cash balances


•Total Outstanding Advances/Transfers
• $1,411,000







Summary of Committee of the Whole 
Revisions


• 2019 CIP Reduced by $15,000 for the Community Wide 
Survey
• This will be funded through Unassigned Fund Balance


• Shifted $59,540 in costs from the RDA to TIF 5/8
• This more accurately reflects the nature of work the RDA is 


currently engaged in 


• Added $3,200 to TIF 5/8 budget for fencing


• Added $1,200 to TIF 5/8 budget for Public Works related 
storm water fees


• Added $33,750 in Grant Revenue to TIF 5/8 budget for 
remaining SAG funds to be reimbursed in 2019







Other Items Discussed


• Funds available for use in 2019 
• TIF No. 3 $171,304
• Special Assessments $122,123 – Recommend using to reduce future debt 


issues
• Debt Service Fund $150,000 – Recommend using to pay 2019 TIF 5/8 and 


6 debt service requirements


• Include $1,000 for Affordable Transportation in the 2019 Budget?


• Include $5,000 for fireworks in the 2019 Budget?


• Equipment Replacement Funding
• Transfer $300,000 from the Unassigned Fund Balance to the Equipment 


Replacement Fund
• Reduce the transfer from the General Fund to the Equipment 


Replacement Fund to $170,000 for the next three years







Other Items Discussed


• Divert funding from the Building Maintenance Reserve Fund 
to the General Fund
• “The Building Maintenance Reserve Fund is not available for 


expenditure for any other purpose than is laid out in this policy.”
• “The City shall commit its revenue received from the rental of City 


properties to the Building Maintenance Fund.”
• “The 2012 funding is $138,826.00 and is to be used as the base 


annual figure for this fund. Future additional rent amounts or 
other revenue sources will be considered by the Council to be 
used to stabilize the balance of this fund.”


• Interpretation
• Minimum funding required is $138,826 
• Averaging $155,000 per year actual - $48,126 in excess funding from 


2015-2017







Other Items Discussed


• Divert funding from the Building Maintenance Reserve Fund 
to the General Fund (cont.)
• Recommendation(s)


• Near Term – Fund 2019 utilities costs associated with the McFarland 
State Bank building from the excess funding in this Fund


• Looking Forward – Finance Committee and Council to determine if 
excess rental revenue should go into the Building Maintenance 
Reserve Fund or be moved to the General Fund Operating budget


• Consider funding the $6,000 Dam Inspection costs using 
amounts available in the Building Maintenance Reserve Fund
• “City Hall, Fire Department, Public Safety Building, Senior Center, 


Depot, Library, EMS, Youth Center, Street Department Facility, 
Power House, Mandt Park Swimming Pond Facility, Band Shell, 
Park Shelters and Park Buildings (excluding Mandt Park Buildings 
owned by the Fair Board). Playground equipment, tennis courts, 
park fencing, etc. is not intended to use this fund.”







2019 BALANCED BUDGET







2018 2018 2019 AMOUNT %


2017 ACTUAL AMENDED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL INCREASE INCREASE


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY 6 MONTHS BUDGET BUDGET (DECREASE) (DECREASE)


GENERAL FUND


TAXES


REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY 8,098,256                            -                                        8,507,687                            9,032,362                             524,675                            6%


REAL ESTATE TAX EQUIVALENT 887,288                               32,971                                 895,000                               533,500                                (361,500)                           -40%


     SUBTOTAL 8,985,544                            32,971                                 9,402,687                            9,565,862                             163,175                            2%


INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES


STATE SHARED REVENUES 537,427                               -                                        557,481                               559,550                                2,069                                 0%


EXPENDITURE RESTRATION PAYMENT 235,987                               -                                        228,341                               231,250                                2,909                                 1%


EXEMPT COMPUTER AID 57,695                                 -                                        58,000                                 59,000                                   1,000                                 2%


PERSONAL PROPERTY AID -                                        -                                        -                                        40,000                                   40,000                               


STATE HIGHWAY/STREET AID 648,069                               178,238                               650,496                               811,500                                161,004                            25%


OTHER STATE AIDS/GRANTS 348,729                               138,037                               311,312                               362,680                                51,368                               17%


     SUBTOTAL 1,827,907                            316,275                               1,805,630                            2,063,980                             258,350                            14%


LICENSES AND PERMITS


GEN LICENSES AND PERMITS 41,596                                 39,646                                 40,800                                 39,900                                   (900)                                   -2%


PLANNING AND ZONING PERMITS 138,371                               152,277                               139,700                               153,000                                13,300                               10%


MISC 32,295                                 17,746                                 27,000                                 29,000                                   2,000                                 7%


     SUBTOTAL 212,262                               209,669                               207,500                               221,900                                14,400                               7%


FINES, FORFEITS AND PENALTIES


MUNICIPAL COURT FINES 109,099                               65,414                                 100,000                               100,000                                -                                     0%


PARKING FINES 25,550                                 27,579                                 21,000                                 27,500                                   6,500                                 31%


     SUBTOTAL 134,649                               92,993                                 121,000                               127,500                                6,500                                 5%


PUBLIC CHARGES


RECREATION 195,648                               89,919                                 249,533                               208,160                                (41,373)                             -17%


POLICE DEPT 199,014                               96,093                                 187,657                               190,000                                2,343                                 1%


PUBLIC WORKS 811,639                               34,531                                 788,500                               793,500                                5,000                                 1%


MISC 176,747                               44,199                                 158,500                               160,000                                1,500                                 1%


     SUBTOTAL 1,383,048                            264,742                               1,384,190                            1,351,660                             (32,530)                             -2%


INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES


UTILITY ADMIN 64,000                                 64,000                                 64,000                                 64,000                                   -                                     0%


EMS ADMIN 18,000                                 9,000                                    18,000                                 18,000                                   -                                     0%


     SUBTOTAL 82,000                                 73,000                                 82,000                                 82,000                                   -                                     0%


MISCELLANEOUS -                                     


INTEREST 125,403                               89,849                                 50,000                                 111,000                                61,000                               122%


ROOM TAXES 8,298                                    1,170                                    7,000                                    6,500                                     (500)                                   -7%


MISCELLANEOUS 407,990                               216,788                               274,031                               302,066                                28,035                               10%


     SUBTOTAL 541,691                               307,807                               331,031                               419,566                                88,535                               27%


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES


SURPLUS -                                        -                                        80,000                                 80,000                                   -                                     0%


OTHER -                                        -                                        -                                        10,000                                   10,000                               


     SUBTOTAL -                                        -                                        80,000                                 90,000                                   10,000                               13%


GRAND TOTAL REVENUE - GENERAL FUND 13,167,101                          1,297,457                            13,414,038                          13,922,468                           508,430                            4%


CITY OF STOUGHTON


REVENUE SUMMARY - GENERAL FUND


2019 BUDGET







2018 2018 2019 AMOUNT %


2017 ACTUAL AMENDED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL INCREASE INCREASE


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY 6 MONTHS BUDGET BUDGET (DECREASE) (DECREASE)


GENERAL FUND


GENERAL GOVERNMENT


CITY COUNCIL 46,521                                 20,507                                 47,005                                 47,005                                   -                                     0%


MUNICIPAL COURT 55,630                                 28,525                                 57,381                                 58,202                                   821                                    1%


ADMINISTRATION 1,733,366                            1,076,440                            1,854,575                            2,029,046                             174,471                            9%


BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS 177,363                               69,275                                 193,051                               191,208                                (1,843)                                -1%


     SUBTOTAL 2,012,880                            1,194,747                            2,152,012                            2,325,461                             173,449                            8%


PUBLIC SAFETY


POLICE DEPARTMENT 3,013,593                            1,457,978                            2,993,638                            3,148,785                             155,147                            5%


EMERGENCY SERVICES 478,108                               202,677                               508,585                               541,563                                32,978                               6%


     SUBTOTAL 3,491,701                            1,660,655                            3,502,223                            3,690,348                             188,125                            5%


PUBLIC WORKS 1,952,461                            960,312                               2,088,302                            2,108,163                             19,861                               1%


CULTURE / RECREATION / HUMAN SERVICES


PARKS 224,999                               87,718                                 200,173                               230,296                                30,123                               15%


RECREATION 307,869                               154,430                               333,150                               320,792                                (12,358)                             -4%


OTHER 686,205                               331,191                               691,150                               711,346                                20,196                               3%


     SUBTOTAL 1,219,073                            573,339                               1,224,473                            1,262,434                             37,961                               3%


DEVELOPMENT


PLANNING 242,071                               128,480                               218,784                               246,217                                27,433                               13%


INSPECTIONS 98,813                                 46,687                                 107,150                               101,041                                (6,109)                                -6%


     SUBTOTAL 340,884                               175,167                               325,934                               347,258                                21,324                               7%


MISC AND UNCLASSIFIED


CONTINGENCY 26,438                                 3,000                                    80,000                                 80,000                                   -                                     0%


     SUBTOTAL 26,438                                 3,000                                    80,000                                 80,000                                   -                                     0%


GENERAL FUND TRANSFERS


DEBT SERVICE FUND 2,566,686                            2,852,786                            2,852,786                            3,304,117                             451,331                            16%


OTHER 1,163,960                            1,175,611                            1,212,308                            803,313                                (408,995)                           -34%


SUBTOTAL 3,730,646                            4,028,397                            4,065,094                            4,107,430                             42,336                               1%


GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES - GENERAL FUND 12,774,083                          8,595,617                            13,438,038                          13,921,094                           483,056                            4%


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - GENERAL FUND 393,018                               (7,298,160)                          (24,000)                                1,374                                     25,374                               -106%


2019 BUDGET


CITY OF STOUGHTON


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY - GENERAL FUND







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


GENERAL FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES


PROPERTY TAXES 8,098,256 8,507,687 9,032,362 9,032,362 6% 524,675


ROOM TAXES 8,298 1,170 7,000 6,500 6,500 -7% (500)


REAL ESTATE EQUIVALENT AND DIVIDEND 887,288 32,971 895,000 533,500 533,500 -40% (361,500)


TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER 31,330 12,850 25,000 20,000 20,000 -20% (5,000)


STATE SHARED TAXES 537,427 557,481 559,550 559,550 0% 2,069


EXPENDITURE RESTRAINT PAYMENT 235,987 228,341 231,250 231,250 1% 2,909


FIRE INSURANCE REBATE 42,936 42,000 42,000 42,000 0% 0


EXEMPT COMPUTER AID 57,695 58,000 59,000 59,000 2% 1,000


PERSONAL PROPERTY AID 40,000 40,000 40,000


STATE GRANTS-POLICE 3,680 3,680 3,680 3,680 0% 0


FEDERAL AID: POLICE 900 1,000 1,000 1,000


STATE ROAD ALLOTMENT 596,386 165,264 599,496 760,000 760,000 27% 160,504


STATE AID - STREETS 51,683 12,974 51,000 51,500 51,500 1% 500


TAXI GRANT 165,211 81,888 140,000 190,000 190,000 36% 50,000


RECYCLING GRANT 34,029 34,016 34,000 34,000 34,000 0% 0


OTHER STATE GRANTS 2,806 0


SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER 60,391 60,000 60,000 60,000 0% 0


COUNTY FUNDING - OUTREACH 42,482 21,233 31,632 32,000 32,000 1% 368


OTHER  GRANTS 2,826 0


LIQUOR & MALT BEVERAGE 17,880 18,480 18,000 18,000 18,000 0% 0


OPERATORS 13,500 10,980 11,000 11,000 11,000 0% 0


CIGARETTE 1,100 1,600 800 1,600 1,600 100% 800


MISC. LICENSE 6,670 6,208 7,000 6,800 6,800 -3% (200)


DOG 2,446 2,378 4,000 2,500 2,500 -38% (1,500)


BUILDING 80,552 81,857 82,500 90,000 90,000 9% 7,500


ELECTRICAL 22,096 33,026 27,500 30,000 30,000 9% 2,500


PLUMBING 19,749 17,283 16,500 18,000 18,000 9% 1,500


HEATING 15,974 20,111 13,200 15,000 15,000 14% 1,800


FIRE PROTECTION FEES 6,100 2,061 2,000 4,000 4,000 100% 2,000


MISC 26,195 15,685 25,000 25,000 25,000 0% 0


COURT PENALTIES/COSTS 109,099 65,414 100,000 100,000 100,000 0% 0


PARKING FINES 25,550 27,579 21,000 27,500 27,500 31% 6,500


MISC. REVENUE 11,024 2,201 5,000 5,000 5,000 0% 0


SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ADMIN FEES 12,565 6,475 10,000 11,500 11,500 15% 1,500


POLICE DEPT FEES 38,739 11,177 16,000 16,000 16,000 0% 0


FIRE DEPT FEES 153,990 79,829 159,657 164,000 164,000 3% 4,343


CITY OF STOUGHTON
2019 MAYOR'S PROPOSED BUDGET







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


MVD FEES 6,285 5,087 12,000 10,000 10,000 -17% (2,000)


ELECTRONIC RECYCLING FEES 6,500 3,430 6,000 6,000 6,000


PUBLIC WORKS CHARGES-MISC 28,238 4,821 10,000 12,000 12,000 20% 2,000


INSPECTION-MOW/SNOW CHARGES (170) 510 2,500 2,500 2,500 0% 0


GARBAGE COLLECTION FEES 739,496 1,843 740,000 745,000 745,000 1% 5,000


STREET OPENING 8,550 2,425 6,000 5,000 5,000 -17% (1,000)


YARD WASTE SITE FEES 11,705 15,475 11,000 11,000 11,000 0% 0


CEMETERY FEES 15,356 5,605 19,000 12,000 12,000 -37% (7,000)


TAXABLE CRAFT SALES 1,964 422 0


MISC TAXABLE SALES (101) 0


NEWSLETTER 468 185 0


PARK RESERVATIONS 7,566 3,311 7,000 7,000 7,000 0% 0


RECREATION 58,258 36,739 55,584 48,273 48,273 -13% (7,311)


SWIM POND 60,868 10,416 68,000 65,000 65,000 -4% (3,000)


REC INSTRUCTION FEES 68,956 39,453 118,949 87,887 87,887 -26% (31,062)


MEDIA CONSULTATION/MISC 150 0


CABLE FRANCHISE FEE 138,311 32,506 138,000 138,000 138,000 0% 0


UNDERWRITING 5,368 950 3,000 3,000 3,000 0% 0


CABLE - TAXABLE SALES 1,005 552 500 500 500 0% 0


VIDEO PRODUCTION SERVICES 2,325 1,330 2,000 2,000 2,000 0% 0


SEWER UTILITY ADMINISTRATION 15,400 15,400 15,400 15,400 15,400 0% 0


ELECTRIC UTILITY ADMINISTRATION 35,400 35,400 35,400 35,400 35,400 0% 0


WATER UTILITY ADMINISTRATION 13,200 13,200 13,200 13,200 13,200 0% 0


EMS ADMINISTRATION 18,000 9,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 0% 0


INTEREST 53,938 70,104 30,000 90,000 90,000 200% 60,000


INTEREST ON TAXES 19,853 11,702 0


REBATE 11,257 7,195 5,000 5,000 5,000


DIVIDENDS 39,320 20,000 16,000 16,000 -20% (4,000)


INTEREST - ASSESSMENTS 1,035 848 0


RENTAL INCOME 12,396 1,033 -100% (1,033)


RENTAL INCOME 1,500 2,554 1,500 10,000 10,000 567% 8,500


SALE OF CITY PROPERTY 1,261 920 0


INSURANCE RECOVERIES-PROPERTY 21,850 3,246 0


INSURANCE- REBATE 20,893 0


DC NUTRITION CONTRACT 26,285 14,642 21,542 30,000 30,000 39% 8,458


DONATIONS- KITCHEN FUND 7,660 8,110 7,000 8,000 8,000 14% 1,000


DONATIONS - TOWNSHIPS 48,518 17,750 42,501 45,000 45,000 6% 2,499


DONATIONS - CENTER 28,740 17,716 29,500 29,000 29,000 -2% (500)


DONATIONS - SEN CNTR CASE MGMT 160 500 -100% (500)


DONATIONS - SPECIAL GIFT (FOUN 38,000 58,000 0


DONATIONS- MEMORY WALK (1,310) 0


FSAYC CONTRIBUTION 114,568 48,421 121,070 121,070 121,070 0% 0


DONATIONS - YOUTH CENTER 2,919 2,000 1,000 1,000 -50% (1,000)


DANE COUNTY DONATIONS 8,884 4,499 8,885 8,996 8,996 1% 111







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


UNITED WAY DONATIONS 4,211 1,534 5,000 4,000 4,000 -20% (1,000)


POLICE SAFETY CAMP 250 4,500 5,000 5,000 5,000 0% 0


DONATIONS- POLICE DEPT. 17,400 22,046 3,500 20,000 20,000 471% 16,500


SHOP WITH A COP 1,991 0


BUDDY BENCHES 3,000 0


HOOPS WITH HERO'S 2,484 0


VIRGIN LAKE BOARDWALK 15,000 0


TRANSFER IN - TIF #3 10,000 10,000 10,000


SURPLUS 80,000 80,000 80,000 0% 0


TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 13,167,101 1,297,457 13,414,038 13,922,468 13,922,468 4% 508,430


Dept 51100 - LEGISLATIVE


SALARIES 43,200 19,050 43,200 43,200 43,200 0% 0


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3,305 1,457 3,305 3,305 3,305 0% 0


TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 16 500 500 500 0% 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 46,521 20,507 47,005 47,005 47,005 0% 0


Dept 51200 - JUDICIAL


SALARIES 12,500 6,010 12,501 12,500 12,500 0% (1)


WAGES 26,282 12,834 27,815 28,655 28,655 3% 840


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 4,873 2,362 4,948 4,997 4,997 1% 49


HEALTH INSURANCE 2,713 317 -100% (317)


TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 1,699 1,004 1,300 1,600 1,600 23% 300


SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 211 97 500 450 450 -10% (50)


OPERATING EXPENSES 7,352 6,218 10,000 10,000 10,000 0% 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 55,630 28,525 57,381 58,202 58,202 1% 821


Dept 51300 - LEGAL


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 122,442 35,140 95,000 120,000 120,000 26% 25,000


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 7,015 2,972 15,000 10,000 10,000 -33% (5,000)


OPERATING EXPENSES 500 -100% (500)


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 129,457 38,112 110,500 130,000 130,000 18% 19,500


Dept 51400 - MAYOR


SALARIES 61,011 29,712 61,818 62,992 62,992 2% 1,174


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 9,024 4,433 8,871 9,304 9,304 5% 433


HEALTH INSURANCE 18,451 8,900 18,497 14,877 14,877 -20% (3,620)


TELEPHONE 107 650 650 650


TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 1,525 72 2,000 1,700 1,700 -15% (300)


SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 7,109 7,297 8,500 7,500 7,500 -12% (1,000)


OPERATING EXPENSES 4,565 815 1,700 2,700 2,700 59% 1,000


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 101,685 51,336 101,386 99,723 99,723 -2% (1,663)







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


Dept 51420 - CLERK


SALARIES 176 5,213 66,671 66,671 66,671


WAGES 111,199 51,186 115,520 66,744 66,744 -42% (48,776)


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 13,700 6,968 14,246 16,635 16,635 17% 2,389


HEALTH INSURANCE 34,243 28,459 33,556 37,512 37,512 12% 3,956


TELEPHONE 7,382 2,125 4,600 4,500 4,500 -2% (100)


TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 1,695 479 3,550 2,800 2,800 -21% (750)


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 152 0


ADS & PUBLICATIONS 4,078 3,326 11,400 10,650 10,650 -7% (750)


OPERATING EXPENSES 1,610 503 3,500 3,500 3,500 0% 0


OPERATING EXPENSES-MUNICIPAL CODE 6,179 1,374 6,000 4,000 4,000 -33% (2,000)


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 180,414 99,633 192,372 213,012 213,012 11% 20,640


Dept 51440 - ELECTION


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 9,889 10,067 20,500 10,500 10,500 -49% (10,000)


ADS & PUBLICATIONS 2,021 1,005 4,000 2,500 2,500 -38% (1,500)


OPERATING EXPENSES 1,511 6,003 7,000 3,750 3,750 -46% (3,250)


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 13,421 17,075 31,500 16,750 16,750 -47% (14,750)


Dept 51510 - FINANCE DIRECTOR


SALARIES 88,820 42,023 89,097 104,069 104,069 17% 14,972


WAGES 89,234 47,536 95,361 100,478 100,478 5% 5,117


OVERTIME 1,511 0


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 23,769 12,730 27,233 29,244 29,244 7% 2,011


HEALTH INSURANCE 41,908 20,710 43,774 66,343 66,343 52% 22,569


POSTAGE 1,850 1,181 8,500 3,000 3,000 -65% (5,500)


TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 881 1,077 4,000 3,000 3,000 -25% (1,000)


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 62,013 59,835 53,000 60,900 60,900 15% 7,900


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 2,532 1,169 5,000 3,000 3,000 -40% (2,000)


TAXI GRANT 150,201 93,605 150,000 209,000 209,000 39% 59,000


OFFICE SUPPLIES 53,992 10,373 24,691 24,200 24,200 -2% (491)


OPERATING EXPENSES 259 748 1,000 3,000 3,000 200% 2,000


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 516,970 290,987 501,656 606,234 606,234 21% 104,578


Dept 51530 - ASSESSOR


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 44,000 44,000 44,000 44,000 44,000 0% 0


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 6,880 3,500 3,500 3,500 0% 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 50,880 44,000 47,500 47,500 47,500 0% 0


Dept 51550 - HR/RISK MANAGEMENT


SALARIES 86,577 42,521 88,634 91,338 91,338 3% 2,704


WAGES 36,026 17,702 36,837 37,942 37,942 3% 1,105


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 17,748 8,601 18,005 18,698 18,698 4% 693







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


HEALTH INSURANCE 9,504 4,057 8,587 8,018 8,018 -7% (569)


TRAINING 337 438 1,500 3,000 3,000 100% 1,500


TELEPHONE 620 256 1,800 750 750 -58% (1,050)


POSTAGE 100 100 100 0% 0


TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 187 601 1,950 1,950 1,950 0% 0


OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,692 1,345 2,000 2,000 2,000 0% 0


ADS & PUBLICATIONS 92 136 1,500 10,000 10,000 567% 8,500


OPERATING EXPENSES 6,282 2,019 11,000 13,790 13,790 25% 2,790


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 161,065 77,676 171,913 187,586 187,586 9% 15,673


Dept 51800 - CITY WEBSITE


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 9,641 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 9,641


Dept 51900 - OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 4,731 50,000


SELF INSURED LOSSES 25,000 70,000 70,000 180% 45,000


MISC EXPENSES 56,472 63,544 49,500 53,000 53,000 7% 3,500


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 61,203 63,544 124,500 123,000 123,000 -1% (1,500)


Dept 51930 - INSURANCE


PROPERTY/LIABILITY INSURANCE 27,465 27,413 30,839 31,764 31,764 3% 925


EXCESS LIABILITY INSURANCE 1,225 1,280 1,400 1,540 1,540 10% 140


EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY 5,771 5,454 7,214 7,214 7,214 0% 0


AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE INSURANCE 40,851 36,285 34,186 42,000 42,000 23% 7,814


BOILER/MACHINERY INSURANCE 995 1,022 1,097 2,000 2,000 82% 903


PROPERTY INSURANCE 23,709 25,883 25,859 27,152 27,152 5% 1,293


CRIME INSURANCE 773 839 839 839 0% 0


VOLUNTEER WORKERS COMP INSURANCE 370 600 600 600 0% 0


WORKERS COMP. INSURANCE 150,776 154,965 159,859 164,655 164,655 3% 4,796


UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 8,655 2,972 11,000 8,500 8,500 -23% (2,500)


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 259,447 256,417 272,893 286,264 286,264 5% 13,371


Dept 52100 - LAW ENFORCEMENT


SALARIES 99,734 48,779 101,903 104,900 104,900 3% 2,997


WAGES 1,383,137 676,112 1,409,584 1,572,432 1,483,607 5% 74,023


WAGES - DISPATCH 305,815 163,781 311,294 313,757 313,757 1% 2,463


WAGES - COMMUNITY SERVICE OFFICER 13,406 2,072 11,980 21,404 21,404 79% 9,424


OVERTIME - DISPATCH 11,794 5,251 13,000 13,000 13,000 0% 0


OVERTIME 154,893 61,169 84,000 123,000 123,000 46% 39,000


WAGES - PART TIME 14,011 9,772 20,000 20,600 20,600 3% 600


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 340,106 163,551 327,438 358,789 343,114 5% 15,676


HEALTH INSURANCE 426,258 203,038 432,839 436,743 436,743 1% 3,904


TRAINING 33,218 15,763 30,000 31,260 31,260 4% 1,260







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


TELEPHONE 22,018 8,742 24,000 26,000 26,000 8% 2,000


EQUIPMENT RENTAL 1,608 1,752 1,700 1,800 1,800 6% 100


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 40,300 12,121 41,000 44,000 44,000 7% 3,000


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3 500 285 1,000 1,500 1,500 50% 500


EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 15,879 11,108 21,800 23,400 23,400 7% 1,600


DANE COM FEES 11,455 6,653 24,000 24,000 24,000 0% 0


VEHICLE EXPENSE 16,863 5,894 17,000 17,000 17,000 0% 0


VEHICLE FUEL 32,384 14,983 30,000 30,000 30,000 0% 0


OPERATING EXPENSES 63,299 32,068 49,900 50,500 50,500 1% 600


UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 18,046 14,517 36,200 34,200 34,200 -6% (2,000)


HOOPS WITH HERO'S 2,484 0


BUDDY BENCHES 2,375 0


POLICE SAFETY CAMP 567 5,000 5,000 5,000 0% 0


ENFORCEMENT EXPENSES 1,425 0


SHOP WITH A COP 2,585 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 3,013,593 1,457,978 2,993,638 3,253,285 3,148,785 5% 155,147


Dept 52200 - FIRE PROTECTION


SALARIES 82,969 40,102 84,850 87,353 87,353 3% 2,503


WAGES 98,060 50,469 99,912 809,455 103,105 3% 3,193


WAGES - VOLUNTEERS 86,380 13,028 107,857 117,000 117,000 8% 9,143


WAGES - PART TIME 1,540 1,675 0


LONGEVITY - VOLUNTEERS 6,175 8,850 9,000 9,000 2% 150


FIRE PENSION BENEFIT 38,355 5,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 0% 0


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 40,020 17,570 32,449 167,362 42,712 32% 10,263


HEALTH INSURANCE 43,826 26,701 50,342 51,868 51,868 3% 1,526


TRAINING 1,648 200 3,100 3,100 3,100 0% 0


TELEPHONE 6,068 1,000 3,200 2,400 2,400 -25% (800)


TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 246 1,425 1,425 1,425 0% 0


OUTSIDE SERVICES - CLEANING 3,792 1,760 5,000 5,000 5,000 0% 0


UTILITIES 24,187 11,007 23,000 23,000 23,000 0% 0


EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 10,547 11,676 10,000 15,000 15,000 50% 5,000


DANE CAD 3,752 747 2,900 3,300 3,300 14% 400


BUILDING & GROUNDS 12,669 5,271 13,725 14,000 14,000 2% 275


MISC EXPENSES 432 5 300 300 300 0% 0


OFFICE SUPPLIES 237 13 350 350 350 0% 0


SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 3,024 2,610 2,825 2,850 2,850 1% 25


VEHICLE FUEL 5,649 3,140 6,700 6,000 6,000 -10% (700)


OPERATING EXPENSES 7,790 8,383 10,000 10,800 10,800 8% 800


OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2 335 1,032 1,000 1,000 1,000


UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 407 1,288 1,800 2,000 2,000 11% 200


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 478,108 202,677 508,585 1,372,563 541,563 6% 32,978


Dept 52400 - INSPECTION







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


SALARIES 5,225 7,495


WAGES 62,317 30,007 69,276 72,696 72,696 5% 3,420


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 9,320 4,455 10,085 9,850 9,850 -2% (235)


HEALTH INSURANCE 18,451 8,900 17,094 14,495 14,495 -15% (2,599)


WEIGHTS & MEASURES 3,200 3,200 3,200 4,000 4,000 25% 800


INSPECTION-MOW/SNOW CHARGES 300 125 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 98,813 46,687 107,150 101,041 101,041 -6% (6,109)


Dept 53200 - CITY BUILDINGS


SALARIES 5,225 10,707 10,879 10,879 2% 172


WAGES 53,286 26,188 71,263 71,187 71,187 0% (76)


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 7,864 3,845 11,530 11,438 11,438 -1% (92)


HEALTH INSURANCE 18,451 8,900 23,801 25,954 25,954 9% 2,153


MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES 200 124 0


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-CITY HALL 12,940 6,463 15,000 15,000 15,000 0% 0


UTILITIES - CITY HALL 31,240 14,576 30,000 30,000 30,000 0% 0


UTILITIES-SENIOR CENTER ANNEX 451 239 1,000 1,000 1,000 0% 0


UTILITIES & MAINTENANCE - DEPOT 3,975 2,377 6,000 6,000 6,000 0% 0


UTILITIES & MAINTENANCE - FOOD PANTRY 2,433 1,006 2,750 2,750 2,750 0% 0


OPERATING EXPENSES 8,813 4,412 10,000 10,000 10,000 0% 0


REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 32,485 1,145 11,000 7,000 7,000 -36% (4,000)


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 177,363 69,275 193,051 191,208 191,208 -1% (1,843)


Dept 53300 - HIGHWAY & STREET MAINT/CONST


SALARIES 59,245 30,764 56,316 59,309 59,309 5% 2,993


WAGES 471,899 241,393 506,667 526,113 526,113 4% 19,446


OVERTIME 9,016 14,644 16,500 16,500 16,500 0% 0


WAGES - PART TIME 10 2,637 15,278 21,442 21,442 40% 6,164


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 78,571 41,676 84,041 85,875 85,875 2% 1,834


HEALTH INSURANCE 124,709 62,343 144,515 126,624 126,624 -12% (17,891)


TELEPHONE 3,413 1,643 3,085 3,500 3,500 13% 415


TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 2,790 1,322 5,600 4,000 4,000 -29% (1,600)


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 32,412 24,305 59,500 56,000 56,000 -6% (3,500)


UTILITIES 28,800 15,507 35,000 37,500 37,500 7% 2,500


RENTING/LEASING EQMT - STREET 11,378 13,000 13,000 13,000 0% 0


MISC EXPENSES 23,088 6,965 20,000 20,000 20,000 0% 0


PPE - PUBLIC WORKS 733 3,000 3,000 3,000 0% 0


OFFICE SUPPLIES 5,378 2,069 3,500 3,500 3,500 0% 0


VEHICLE FUEL 36,928 18,189 40,000 38,500 38,500 -4% (1,500)


OPERATING EXPENSES 66,754 54,429 86,000 83,000 83,000 -3% (3,000)


REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 4,659 248 3,000 8,000 8,000 167% 5,000


TREE PURCHASES - STREETS 30,516 7,665 17,000 30,000 30,000 76% 13,000


UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 9,041 4,073 7,300 7,300 7,300 0% 0


TOOL ALLOWANCE 1,000 1,055 1,000 1,000 1,000 0% 0







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


VIRGIN LAKE BOARDWALK 14,592 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 1,014,199 531,660 1,120,302 1,144,163 1,144,163 2% 23,861


Dept 53310 - SNOW REMOVAL


OPERATING EXPENSES 50,139 53,623 70,000 68,000 68,000 -3% (2,000)


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 50,139 53,623 70,000 68,000 68,000 -3% (2,000)


Dept 53400 - SIGNS AND MARKINGS


OPERATING EXPENSES 18,874 4,893 18,000 18,000 18,000 0% 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 18,874 4,893 18,000 18,000 18,000 0% 0


Dept 53420 - STREET LIGHTING


OPERATING EXPENSES 122,409 59,475 130,000 128,000 128,000 -2% (2,000)


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 122,409 59,475 130,000 128,000 128,000 -2% (2,000)


Dept 53620 - SANITATION


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 529,828 222,748 530,000 530,000 530,000 0% 0


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 180,028 73,745 185,000 185,000 185,000 0% 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 709,856 296,493 715,000 715,000 715,000 0% 0


Dept 54600 - SENIOR CENTER


SALARIES 69,568 33,675 71,225 73,277 73,277 3% 2,052


WAGES 125,256 66,604 136,035 139,358 139,358 2% 3,323


WAGES - SENIOR CASE MGMT. 108,006 45,123 114,604 119,250 119,250 4% 4,646


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 42,979 20,554 43,560 43,997 43,997 1% 437


HEALTH INSURANCE 60,890 36,823 62,535 75,069 75,069 20% 12,534


FOUNDATION GRANT 44,883 8,586 0


KITCHEN FUND 7,496 6,821 7,000 8,000 8,000 14% 1,000


TELEPHONE 3,280 1,169 2,500 2,500 2,500 0% 0


TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 3,207 621 3,000 3,000 3,000 0% 0


UTILITIES 21,286 9,945 21,000 21,000 21,000 0% 0


BUILDING  MAINTENANCE 16,497 10,258 19,000 19,000 19,000 0% 0


PROGRAMS/PUBLICITY 2,517 1,228 3,000 4,000 4,000 33% 1,000


ADS & PUBLICATIONS 533 1,719 3,000 3,000 3,000 0% 0


ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE 1,100 1,100 1,100 0% 0


OPERATING EXPENSES 8,635 3,911 10,000 10,000 10,000 0% 0


OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2 513 19 0


REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 400 193 400 400 400 0% 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 515,946 247,249 497,959 522,951 522,951 5% 24,992


Dept 54910 - CEMETERY


EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 19,000 7,125 19,000 19,000 19,000 0% 0


MISC EXPENSES 17,984 7,043 16,000 16,000 16,000 0% 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 36,984 14,168 35,000 35,000 35,000 0% 0







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


Dept 55100 - COMMUNITY COMMITMENT


MUSEUM 500 500 500 500 0% 0


HOLIDAY PROMOTION 782 318 6,800 1,500 1,500 -78% (5,300)


CITY BAND 500 500 500


ARTS COUNCIL 75 500 500 500


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 1,357 318 7,300 3,000 3,000 -59% (4,300)


Dept 55200 - PARKS


SALARIES 6,733 2,849 4,897 5,157 5,157 5% 260


WAGES 64,913 26,740 44,001 45,307 45,307 3% 1,306


OVERTIME 119 0


SEASONAL/TEMPORARY 63,989 21,754 70,350 82,410 82,410 17% 12,060


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 15,049 5,916 12,399 13,519 13,519 9% 1,120


HEALTH INSURANCE 11,277 3,731 7,026 9,403 9,403 34% 2,377


BUILDING & GROUNDS 18,410 7,002 16,000 21,000 21,000 31% 5,000


RENTING/LEASING EQMT - PARKS 793 4,000 4,000 4,000 0% 0


OFFICE SUPPLIES 32 52 0


VEHICLE FUEL 3,472 893 5,000 5,000 5,000 0% 0


OPERATING EXPENSES 32,064 14,414 27,500 35,500 35,500 29% 8,000


REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 8,941 3,574 9,000 9,000 9,000 0% 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 224,999 87,718 200,173 230,296 230,296 15% 30,123


Dept 55300 - RECREATION PROGRAMS & EVENTS


SALARIES 65,970 37,904 64,965 59,399 59,399 -9% (5,566)


WAGES 51,191 26,760 52,700 74,077 53,167 1% 467


WAGES - PART TIME 2,913 1,371 6,000 6,000 6,000 0% 0


SEASONAL/TEMPORARY 32,081 12,534 47,713 53,928 53,928 13% 6,215


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 25,033 8,985 20,994 24,226 20,536 -2% (458)


HEALTH INSURANCE 22,662 5,191 22,493 12,873 12,873 -43% (9,620)


TELEPHONE 1,804 1,449 1,000 2,000 2,000 100% 1,000


TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 130 408 300 2,424 2,424 708% 2,124


SALES TAX 6,567 1,771 7,000 7,000 7,000 0% 0


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 44,957 20,019 48,694 44,028 44,028 -10% (4,666)


EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 771 7,360 7,360 7,360 0% 0


MISC EXPENSES 4,630 690 1,000 1,000 1,000 0% 0


ADS & PUBLICATIONS 1,439 978 1,500 1,500 1,500 0% 0


OPERATING EXPENSES 32,184 23,377 30,931 29,577 29,577 -4% (1,354)


OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-3 8,000 9,400 8,000 8,000 8,000 0% 0


OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-4 7,297 3,593 8,500 8,000 8,000 -6% (500)


POOL SINKING FUND 240 4,000 4,000 4,000 0% 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 307,869 154,430 333,150 345,392 320,792 -4% (12,358)


Dept 55400 - YOUTH CENTER







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


SALARIES 11,544 4,896 14,261 10,673 10,673 -25% (3,588)


WAGES 64,772 36,507 76,165 78,455 78,455 3% 2,290


WAGES - PART TIME 20,343 8,934 18,619 19,000 19,000 2% 381


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 12,732 6,666 14,400 14,197 14,197 -1% (203)


HEALTH INSURANCE 21,315 9,390 21,646 23,158 23,158 7% 1,512


TELEPHONE 1,697 695 3,000 2,112 2,112 -30% (888)


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 21,000 10,500 21,000 21,000 21,000 0% 0


UTILITIES 8,717 3,787 8,500 8,500 8,500 0% 0


BUILDING  MAINTENANCE 2,792 2,033 4,000 4,000 4,000 0% 0


RENT EXPENSE 3,989 4,300 4,300 4,300 0% 0


OPERATING EXPENSES 1 216 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 168,902 83,624 185,891 185,395 185,395 0% (496)


Dept 55500 - IT/MEDIA SERVICES


SALARIES 36,449 34,718 80,497 82,912 82,912 3% 2,415


WAGES 52,526 27,986 58,116 59,843 59,843 3% 1,727


WAGES - PART TIME 8,562 16,000 17,000 17,000 6% 1,000


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 13,665 10,438 21,116 22,114 22,114 5% 998


HEALTH INSURANCE 24,602 17,801 36,134 44,228 44,228 22% 8,094


TRAINING 3,500 2,500 2,500 -29% (1,000)


TELEPHONE 2,735 1,286 2,800 1,900 1,900 -32% (900)


POSTAGE 120 210 210 75% 90


TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 159 572 1,597 1,750 1,750 10% 153


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 9,358 20,000 9,000 9,000 -55% (11,000)


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 2,446 2,188 6,000 37,950 37,950 533% 31,950


EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 9,687 9,983 33,400 10,000 10,000 -70% (23,400)


MISC EXPENSES 106,906 14,021 20,000 21,000 21,000 5% 1,000


OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,860 1,860 1,860


SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 530 575 975 975 70% 400


VEHICLE EXPENSE 575 575 575


OPERATING EXPENSES 8 217 500 5,160 5,160 932% 4,660


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 249,183 137,660 300,355 318,977 318,977 6% 18,622


Dept 56300 - PLANNING


SALARIES 85,016 44,964 78,162 88,433 88,433 13% 10,271


WAGES 69,796 42,000 66,252 113,979 68,929 4% 2,677


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 20,098 12,117 20,724 30,438 22,488 9% 1,764


HEALTH INSURANCE 35,063 16,631 30,646 38,117 38,117 24% 7,471


TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 2,361 1,693 3,000 3,000 3,000 0% 0


VEHICLE EXPENSE 1,279 539 1,000 1,000 1,000 0% 0


VEHICLE FUEL 2,536 968 2,000 2,000 2,000 0% 0


OPERATING EXPENSES - PLANNING DEPARTMENT 25,922 9,568 17,000 22,250 22,250 31% 5,250


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 242,071 128,480 218,784 299,217 246,217 13% 27,433


0







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


Dept 59200 - CONTINGENCY 0


TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND 26,438 3,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 0% 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 26,438 3,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 0% 0


Dept 59300 - TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE


TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND 2,366,686 2,652,786 2,652,786 3,104,117 3,104,117 17% 451,331


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 2,366,686 2,652,786 2,652,786 3,104,117 3,104,117 17% 451,331


Dept 59400 - TRANSFER TO CAPITAL


TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND-OPERA HOUSE 170,491 171,231 171,231 165,000 165,000 -4% (6,231)


TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE-CAPITAL OUTLAY 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 0% 0


TRANSFER TO EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 219,500 219,500 219,500 -100% (219,500)


TRANSFER TO EMS 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 0% 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 669,991 670,731 670,731 445,000 445,000 -34% (225,731)


Dept 59500 - TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS


TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND-SICK LEAVE 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 0% 0


TRANSFER TO PS BUILDING 47,641 20,592 52,000 -100% (52,000)


TRANSFER TO FIREMAN'S PENSION 4,581 33,000 2,000 2,000 -94% (31,000)


TRANSFER TO TIF FUND 58,000 58,000 58,000


TR OUT - LIBRARY FUND 567,747 599,288 571,577 421,813 421,813 -26% (149,764)


TRANSFER TO LANDMARKS 4,000 5,000 5,000 9,500 9,500 90% 4,500


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 683,969 684,880 721,577 551,313 551,313 -24% (170,264)


Dept 59510


TRANSFER TO ECONOMIC DEVELOPEMENT 10,000 10,000


TRANSFER TO RDA 10,000 10,000 10,000 7,000 7,000 -30% (3,000)


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 10,000 20,000 20,000 7,000 7,000 -65% (13,000)


TOTAL ESTIMATED APPROPRIATIONS 12,774,083 8,595,617 13,438,038 14,934,194 13,921,094 4% 483,056


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - GENERAL FUND 393,018 (7,298,160) (24,000) (1,011,726) 1,374 -106% 25,374


2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


LIBRARY FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES


DANE COUNTY SERVICE FEES 219,116 213,167 213,167 220,254 220,254 3% 7,087


OTHER COUNTIES SERVICE FEES 8,714 9,107 9,107 8,041 8,041 -12% (1,066)


2019 FUND 215 LIBRARY BUDGET







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


MISC. REVENUE 4,675 1,153 0


FINES 23,262 9,081 24,000 22,000 22,000 -8% (2,000)


COPY MACHINE 4,650 2,428 4,500 4,700 4,700 4% 200


TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 567,747 599,288 571,577 421,813 421,813 -26% (149,764)


TRANSFER IN - OTHER FUNDS 172,000 172,000


SURPLUS 775 10,000 10,000 1190% 9,225


TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 828,164 834,224 823,126 858,808 858,808 4% 35,682


ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES


SALARIES 78,322 40,855 81,968 74,888 74,888 -9% (7,080)


WAGES 356,831 176,855 366,502 386,935 386,935 6% 20,433


WAGES - PART TIME 60,627 29,369 47,481 65,824 65,824 39% 18,343


SEASONAL/TEMPORARY 8,293 4,175 9,589 8,500 8,500 -11% (1,089)


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 67,046 33,363 66,447 72,012 72,012 8% 5,565


HEALTH INSURANCE 81,777 49,413 74,359 66,801 66,801 -10% (7,558)


TELEPHONE 1,473 451 1,000 1,000 1,000 0% 0


POSTAGE 503 116 400 400 400 0% 0


TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 2,571 376 1,600 1,600 1,600 0% 0


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 528 210 500 500 500 0% 0


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3 300 300 300 0% 0


UTILITIES 20,339 6,635 19,000 19,000 19,000 0% 0


UTILITIES-BUILDING 2 5,537 2,408 6,500 6,500 6,500 0% 0


EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1,337 952 1,000 1,500 1,500 50% 500


REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 7,114 2,760 9,000 9,000 9,000 0% 0


TECHNOLOGY COSTS 46,542 48,224 48,900 48,850 48,850 0% (50)


MISC EXPENSES 304 129 500 500 500 0% 0


PROGRAMS/PUBLICITY 3,724 2,459 3,500 4,000 4,000 14% 500


SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 400 315 400 400 400 0% 0


PERIODICALS 5,956 4,308 5,800 5,600 5,600 -3% (200)


E-RESOURCES 7,843 7,584 7,600 8,198 8,198 8% 598


AUDIO VISUAL 12,566 5,142 10,700 11,000 11,000 3% 300


BOOKS 46,268 21,993 44,300 44,600 44,600 1% 300


OPERATING EXPENSES 4,167 3,011 3,600 3,800 3,800 6% 200


OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-1 200 73 200 200 200 0% 0


OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2 4,676 2,589 4,600 4,800 4,800 4% 200


CAPITAL-EQUIPMENT 2,783 2,380 7,100 7,100 198% 4,720


CAPITAL- COMPUTERS 424 5,000 5,000 5,000 0% 0


TOTAL ESTIMATED APPROPRIATIONS 824,944 446,972 823,126 858,808 858,808 4% 35,682


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - LIBRARY FUND 3,220 387,252 0 0 0 0







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


OPERA HOUSE FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES


TICKET SALES 590,879 372,189 604,776 599,241 599,241 -1% (5,535)


REVENUE-FEES 52,275 7,902 45,963 45,542 45,542 -1% (421)


OTHER TAXABLE SALES 200 -100% (200)


MEMBERSHIPS 108,577 5,195 110,000 110,000 110,000 0% 0


ANNUAL PUBLICATION 5,746 17,477 12,500 15,000 15,000 20% 2,500


TAX EXEMPT SALES 1,113 1,000 1,000 1,000 0% 0


INTEREST 47 8 0


DONATIONS 5,017 2,898 5,000 5,000 5,000 0% 0


TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 170,491 171,231 171,231 165,000 165,000 -4% (6,231)


TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 934,145 576,900 950,670 940,783 940,783 -1% (9,887)


ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES


SALARIES 74,844 36,454 76,558 78,833 78,833 3% 2,275


WAGES 92,219 46,356 94,374 97,251 97,251 3% 2,877


SEASONAL/TEMPORARY 8,682 3,008 10,000 10,000 10,000 0% 0


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 24,856 12,096 25,293 25,879 25,879 2% 586


HEALTH INSURANCE 32,242 9,067 31,934 13,915 13,915 -56% (18,019)


TELEPHONE 4,695 135 3,500 3,500 3,500 0% 0


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 49,620 8,890 45,963 45,542 45,542 -1% (421)


EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 4,708 5,000 5,000 5,000 0% 0


ADS & PUBLICATIONS 94,858 9,932 85,000 90,000 90,000 6% 5,000


SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 2,105 2,397 2,000 2,500 2,500 25% 500


OPERATING EXPENSES 21,856 16,453 20,000 25,000 25,000 25% 5,000


OPERATING EXPENSES-GUARANTEES 467,030 283,209 435,850 418,400 418,400 -4% (17,450)


OPERATING EXPENSES-HOSPITALITY 62,827 35,134 58,948 40,000 40,000 -32% (18,948)


OPERATING EXPENSES-MISC EVENT EXPENSES 3,751 1,505 5,000 5,000 5,000 0% 0


OPERATING EXPENSES-CONTRACT LABOR/RENTAL 19,392 11,568 20,000 30,000 30,000 50% 10,000


GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES 22,116 3,090 17,000 17,000 17,000 0% 0


TOTAL ESTIMATED APPROPRIATIONS 985,801 479,294 936,420 907,820 907,820 -3% (28,600)


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - OPERA HOUSE FUND (51,656) 97,606 14,250 32,963 32,963 131% 18,713


2018 2018 2019 2019


2019 FUND 245 OPERA HOUSE BUDGET


2019 FUND 603 EMS BUDGET







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


EMS FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES


STATE MEDICARE SUPPLEMENT 20,151 22,500 20,500 20,500 -9% (2,000)


BAB REBATE 6,517 4,865 4,500 4,500 -8% (365)


FIRE DEPT FEES 44,942 23,595 42,511 44,650 44,650 5% 2,139


AMBULANCE FEES 679,092 272,613 610,000 610,000 610,000 0% 0


STATE DEPT COLLECTION (SDC) (7,202) 25,000 25,000 25,000


TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 0% 0


TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 830,702 369,006 759,876 784,650 784,650 3% 24,774


ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES


Dept 52300 - AMBULANCE


SALARIES 77,540 37,833 79,284 81,790 81,790 3% 2,506


WAGES 32,507 16,341 41,538 42,634 42,634 3% 1,096


WAGES - PART TIME 134,681 59,451 132,925 141,000 141,000 6% 8,075


LONGEVITY - VOLUNTEERS 4,825 6,650 5,300 5,300 -20% (1,350)


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 34,926 12,376 28,015 28,602 28,602 2% 587


HEALTH INSURANCE 25,526 12,309 26,210 21,835 21,835 -17% (4,375)


WORKERS COMP INSURANCE 6,230 12,000 12,000 12,000 0% 0


TELEPHONE 4,011 2,384 3,000 4,000 4,000 33% 1,000


TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 13,532 4,135 9,350 9,350 9,350 0% 0


EMT TRAINING BANK 984 3,650 3,560 3,560 -2% (90)


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0% 0


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONT 41,901 15,422 32,000 40,000 40,000 25% 8,000


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3 2,000 2,000 2,000 0% 0


UTILITIES 15,744 7,725 18,800 17,800 17,800 -5% (1,000)


EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 15,824 9,809 11,500 13,500 13,500 17% 2,000


MISC EXPENSES 4,636 1,548 3,700 3,700 3,700 0% 0


OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,553 2,968 3,500 6,000 6,000 71% 2,500


RENT EXPENSE 45,000 22,500 45,000 39,643 39,643 -12% (5,357)


SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 983 1,171 1,000 1,200 1,200 20% 200


DEPRECIATION/SINKING FUND 100,314 0


ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE 18,000 9,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 0% 0


VEHICLE EXPENSE 11,008 2,674 8,000 8,000 8,000 0% 0


VEHICLE FUEL 7,890 3,299 6,800 8,000 8,000 18% 1,200


OPERATING EXPENSES 40,023 19,512 43,000 42,000 42,000 -2% (1,000)


OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2 264 500 -100% (500)


OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-3 775 228 1,000 1,000 1,000 0% 0


REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 2,486 32 6,400 6,400 6,400 0% 0


UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 5,066 1,124 5,000 5,000 5,000 0% 0


AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE INSURANCE 1,716 2,500 2,500 2,500 0% 0







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 659,961 242,825 561,322 574,814 574,814 2% 13,492


Dept 58200 - INTEREST & FISCAL CHARGES


INTEREST 17,873 34,035 8,670 8,670 -75% (25,365)


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 17,873 0 34,035 8,670 8,670 -75% (25,365)


Dept 59230 - TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE 100,000 130,000 130,000 30% 30,000


TRANSFER TO EMS TRUCK FUND 30,000 30,000 30,000 40,000 40,000 33% 10,000


TRANSFER TO EQUIP REPLACEMENT 10,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 0% 0


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 40,000 55,000 155,000 195,000 195,000 26% 40,000


TOTAL ESTIMATED APPROPRIATIONS 717,834 297,825 750,357 778,484 778,484 4% 28,127


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - EMS FUND 112,868 71,181 9,519 6,166 6,166 -35% (3,353)


2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


203 TID #3 FUND 443,449 437,289 439,349 450,229 450,229 2% 10,880


204 TID #4 FUND 110,867 107,268 103,775 109,800 109,800 6% 6,025


205 TID #5 FUND 341,593 449,466 2,000 706,528 706,528 35226% 704,528


206 TID #6 FUND 569,728 77,288 102,787 2,577,163 2,577,163 2407% 2,474,376


207 TID #7 FUND 216,660 318,041 351,423 351,423 351,423


212 SAFETY BUILDING FUND 47,641 23,684 52,000 62,000 62,000 19% 10,000


217 LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND 51,938 24,016 19,830 -100% (19,830)


222 RIVER TRAIL FUND 450 0


223 PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND 253,149 46,660 0


224 STORM SEWER FUND 466,301 423,059 598,246 745,465 745,465 25% 147,219


225 CEMETERY FUND 226 127 100 200 200 100% 100


227 EMS TRUCK FUND 216,296 209,500 -100% (209,500)


228 EMS EQUIPMENT FUND 14,202 2,155 10,500 20,000 20,000 90% 9,500


229 SENIOR CENTER WOOD SHOP 3,001 1,248 2,300 2,300 2,300


230 TOWNSHIP OUTREACH FUND 7,115 3,129 7,697 5,260 5,260 -32% (2,437)


231 SENIORS IN NEED 14,341 4,928 0


232 SENIOR CENTER SPECIAL FUND 3,978 3,370 0


233 HOLIDAY FUND 4,851 0


234 FOOD PANTRY 75,656 30,577 70,000 75,000 75,000 7% 5,000


235 LANDMARKS 936 89 300 14,000 14,000 4567% 13,700


236 TREE COMMISSION 675 225 4,000 550 550 -86% (3,450)


2019 REMAINING FUND EXPENDITURE BUDGETS







2018 2018 2019 2019


2017 ACTIVITY AMENDED DEPARTMENT REQUESTED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL 2018-2019 2018-2019


DESCRIPTION ACTIVITY THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE AMT CHANGE


241 EMS TRUST FUND 9,336 3,904 5,200 10,650 10,650 105% 5,450


242 FIRE DEPT SPECIAL FUND 28,448 10,854 22,950 22,950 22,950


247 TOURISM FUND 82,982 11,703 80,000 80,000 80,000 0% 0


250 SICK LEAVE FUND 87,074 0


252 K9 FUND 12,532 3,101 9,500 6,125 6,125 -36% (3,375)


260 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND 41,441 943 2,694 5,200 5,200 93% 2,506


261 REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (14,413) 20,701 10,000 7,040 7,040 -30% (2,960)


300 DEBT SERVICE FUND 6,264,782 8,391,378 3,248,525 4,669,817 4,669,817 44% 1,421,292


400 CONSTRUCTION FUND 2,034,950 513,361 2,775,403 2,991,439 2,991,439 8% 216,036


410 CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND 1,932,316 1,959,865 8,830,000 1,904,600 1,904,600 -78% (6,925,400)


411 BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND 945 12,582 255,573 281,500 281,500 10% 25,927


412 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 78,969 99,455 205,943 178,350 178,350 -13% (27,593)





		08a-R-184 -2018 2018-City of Stoughton Budget Resolution.pdf

		08b-2019 Operating Budget Documents.pdf






2019 Annual Cost ERU's Annual Monthly


Proposed Budget 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2013 ERU Cost $454,310 8,533 53.24$    4.44$      


2014 Adopted ERU 454,310$     8,775 51.77$    4.31$      


2015 Adopted ERU 498,212$     9,664 51.55$    4.30$      


Operation Budget 329,177$                       366,138$         381,057$         385,746$         347,462$             387,477$             2016 Adopted ERU 507,267$     8,906 56.96$    4.75$      


New Debt Service 103,833$                       110,774$         141,060$         164,364$         229,484$             207,862$             2017 Adopted ERU 547,330$     8,994 60.86$    5.07$      


Equipment Replacement 21,300$                         21,300$           21,300$           21,300$           21,300$               21,300$               2018 Adopted ERU 561,246$     9,152 61.32$    5.11$      


Other Revenues 36,150$           24,080$           37,000$               37,000$               2019 Adopted ERU 610,890$     9,318 65.56$    5.46$      


Rate of Return on Net Plant Balance 31,251$               


Total Costs 454,310$                       498,212$         507,267$         547,330$         561,246$             610,890$             Change from 2018 Fees 4.24$      6.91%


Proposed $$ to be recovered through SW Utility


Operating Costs 454,310$                       498,212$         507,267$         547,330$         561,246$             610,890$             


Annual Cost Per ERU 51.77$                           52$                  56.96$             60.86$             61.32$                 65.56$                 


Monthly Cost Per ERU 4.31$                             4.30$               4.75$               5.07$               5.11$                   5.46$                   


2019 Revenues 647,890$             


Per Budget 647,890$             


-$                     


Equipment Replacement Cost Life


Leaf Vacuum Unit #42 50,000$                         10 Depreciation 2019 Expenses 595,339$             


Leaf Vacuum Unit #41 50,000$                         10 5,000$             Per Budget 595,339$             


Elgin Pelican Street Sweeper #12 145,000$                       14 5,000$             -$                         


Rhino Ditch Mower #43 14,000$                         15 10,357$           


933$                


$259,000


21,290$           Annual


ADOPTED Storm Water Budget and ERU Charge


SUMMARY


11/9/2018







 Plant Balance Average Balance Depreciation Composite Rate


Accumulated 


Depreciation Net Plant


2019 2018 2017 12/31/14 Capital Assets 535,008$                   


Operating Revenues 12/31/15 Capital Assets 1,016,135$                775,572$                   33,871$                     4.37% (69,983)$                    946,152$             


Charges for services 647,890$     598,246$      602,208$    12/31/16 Capital Assets 1,411,265$                1,213,700$                47,042$                     3.88% (117,025)$                  1,294,240$          


12/31/17 Capital Assets 2,336,051$                1,873,658$                77,868$                     4.16% (194,893)$                  2,141,158$          


12/31/18 Capital Assets 2,686,051$                2,511,051$                103,706$                   4.13% (298,599)$                  2,387,452$          


Operating Expenses 12/31/19 Capital Assets 3,552,489$                3,119,270$                128,826$                   4.13% (427,425)$                  3,125,064$          


Operation and maintenance 387,477$     347,192$      360,123$    ROR 1.00%


Depreciation 128,826$     103,706$      77,868$      31,251$               


   Total Operating Expenses 516,303$     450,898$      437,991$    


Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)


Investment income 5,000$         8,000$          5,411$        


Interest expense (25,573)$      (33,217)$       (28,310)$     


Grants 250,000$     -$              8,706$        


   Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 229,427$     (25,217)$       (14,193)$     


Net Income Before Contributions/Transfers 361,014$     122,131$      150,024$    


2019 2018 2017


Operating Activities


Received from customers 647,890$     598,246$      644,233$    


Paid to suppliers (188,201)$    (153,830)$     (169,852)$   


Paid to employees (199,276)$    (193,362)$     (193,483)$   


   Net Operating Activities 260,413$     251,054$      280,898$    


Investing Activities


Investment income 5,000$         8,000$          5,411$        


Capital and Related Financing Activities


Debt issued -$             -$              575,000$    


Debt retired (182,289)$    (170,970)$     (119,676)$   


Interest paid (25,573)$      33,217$        (22,682)$     


Capital assets (866,438)$    -$              (175,125)$   Estimated $350,000 in 2018 but in Fund 410


Grants 250,000$     -$              8,706$        


   Net Capital and Financing Activities (824,300)$    (137,753)$     266,223$    


Net Change in Cash Flows (558,887)$    121,301$      552,532$    


Cash Beginning of Year 767,997$     646,696$      94,164$      


Cash End of Year 209,110$     767,997$      646,696$    


CASH BALANCE AT 9/30/18 535,313$      


STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS


INCOME STATEMENT







2017 2018 2018 2019


ACTIVITY ACTIVITY AMENDED EXECUTIVE PROPOSAL


DESCRIPTION THRU 06/30/18 BUDGET BUDGET


STORM WATER FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES


STATE GRANTS 8,706 250,000


STORMWATER USER FEES 561,769 236,847 561,246 611,349


STORMWATER REVIEW FEES 33,439 23,129 30,000 30,000


YARD WASTE SITE FEES 7,000 7,000 7,000


INTEREST 5,411 4,818 3,300 5,000


CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION 246,126


CONTRIBUTIONS FROM CITY (TIF) 503,535


TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 1,365,986 264,794 601,546 903,349


ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES


SALARIES 12,484 6,459 20,405 21,488


WAGES 97,669 52,259 92,094 105,650


OVERTIME 245 477


WAGES - PART TIME 6,672 1,674 8,483 7,538


SEASONAL/TEMPORARY 1,700 89


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 30,101 8,745 17,068 18,697


HEALTH INSURANCE 21,601 12,321 30,374 28,689


TELEPHONE 436 190 1,100 480


TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 372 213 800 800


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 22,668 19,863 28,000 43,500


OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3 42,242 16,903 31,200 45,200


UTILITIES 1,130 504 1,200


MISC EXPENSES 6,211 16,175 18,000 18,000


OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,066 121 750 500


PERMITS/FEES 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000


ADS & PUBLICATIONS 500 500


VEHICLE FUEL 11,972 4,493 12,600 12,600


EQUIP MAINTENANCE- STORMWATER 15,816 11,075 16,000 16,000


POND MAINTENANCE- STORMWATER 9,276 4,059 15,000 20,000


OPERATING EXPENSES 25,192 13,134 22,000 22,000


OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-1 2,963 507 4,080 4,080


UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 1,366 357 1,800 1,800


DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 77,868 128,826


STORMWATER STUDY 23,930 14,153


TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE 229,484


SALARIES 13,814 5,794 15,396 10,879


WAGES 3,547 3,596 1,445


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2,435 840 2,734 1,777


HEALTH INSURANCE 3,215 1,170 3,482 2,654


TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND 21,300 21,300


TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE 24,470 229,484 207,862


DEBT ISSUANCE FEES 3,840


ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES 466,301 423,059 598,246 745,465


2019 FUND 224 STORM WATER BUDGET








 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION TO THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the City of Stoughton five-year (2019-


2023) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 


 
Committee Action: 


 


 


 
Committee of the Whole recommends approval 10-0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 2019 - $9,382,467 
 
File Number: 


 
R-185 -2018 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 13, 2018 


 
WHEREAS, City staff has prepared and the CIP Budget Committee and Council Committee of the Whole 


has reviewed the proposed five-year (2019-2023) Capital Improvement Plan; and 


WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the budget on the 13th day of November, 2018 by the 


Common Council; and 


WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed five-year 


(2019-2023) Capital Improvement Plan to the Common Council on November 1, 2018; and 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) 


approve and adopt the five-year (2019-2023) Capital Improvement Plan. 


    


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


          


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     





